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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD CHAIRPERSON

WHY IS THE CHURCH INVOLVED IN THE MICRO-INSURANCE BUSINESS?

To us at SEDP MBA, the answer is simple: because we
would like to serve the poor better. We started with
(and still do) various programs for the poorest and
most vulnerable - nutrition, disaster response,
sustainable agriculture, coastal resource
management, among others. Then some 25 years ago
we piloted a social enterprise program to support
women micro-entrepreneurs with micro-financing,
skills training, and other support services. It has
succeeded in helping many families of entrepreneurial SR . N

poor to improve their overall well-being and progress out of poverty. It has since
grown into the largest Church-based microfinance NGO in the country today, SEDP
Inc.

Getting into micro-insurance, a decision made more than ten years ago, was a natural
progression in line with SEDP’s mission to empower the poor in the spirit of the
Gospel. Micro-insurance, especially in the mode of a members-oriented and
members-led mutual benefit association (MBA), provides social protection that
addresses vulnerabilities of significant income-loss due to death or illness in the
family. Under the umbrella of SEDP MSI (Mutually Supporting Institutions),
microfinance and business development services enable our members to move
forward to better lives and more opportunities, while micro-insurance helps them
sustain these gains by protecting them from setbacks along the way.

Soon we hope to provide more protection relevant to our members’ expanding
needs, including risks due to climate-induced disasters, even as we seek to
continuously improve our services and reach out to more sectors to fill-in their gaps
in social protection.

In the service of God and His People,

REV. FR. REX PAUL B. ARJONA
President and Chairman
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OUR ORGANIZATION

SEDP MBA is a non-stock non-profit Association registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) with Reg. No. CN20092141 and licensed to operate as
Microinsurance-Mutual Benefit Association (Mi-MBA) by the Insurance Commission (IC).

It is a subsidiary of SEDP - Simbag sa Pag-Asenso Inc., a microfinance institution which
operates primarily in Bikol region and some part of Samar Province.

SEDP MBA is owned and governed by its members. Implementation of Plans and
Priorities are carried by the management and oversees by the Board of Trustees.

SEDP MBA’'S THRUSTS
Core Values
Members Satisfaction
MISSION VISION Christ Centered
Good Governance
Improved Social To beamong the Employees Welfare
Protection for SEDP Leading Mutual Trustworthiness
members and Low Microinsurance Service Excellenca
income groups provider in Bicol

ORGANIZATIONAL OBJECTIVES

1. MEMBERS PERSPECTIVE - To maintain and increase membership for the sustainability of
the program and to provide additional social protection programs that will safeguard the
members from various risks.

2. FINANCIAL PERSPECTIVE - To be financially stable and sustainable by properly monitoring
the operational expenses versus the approved budget.

3. INTERNAL PERSPECTIVE - Sound governance shall be in-placed to maintain good
performance and/or exceed the target performance indicators.

4. LEARNING & GROWTH PERSPECTIVE - To maintain the good performance of the
organization it is of most important to capacitate the staff and the members of the Board
of Trustees by providing training programs, capacity building activities and exposure trips
to hone their individual expertise for their personal development and organizations

development as a whole.
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
A. MEMBERSHIP AND CONTRIBUTIONS COLLECTED

Membership : 61,528
Php 53,653,686
Php 13,093,490

BLIP Contribution
CLIP Contribution

B. NUMBER AND AMOUNT OF CLAIMS PAID

Particulars Number Amount

Basic Life Insurance Plan (BLIP) 523 11,799,500

Credit Life Insurance Plan (CLIP) 122 1,783,133

Dcaily  Hospitalization  Income

Benefit (DHIB) 816 534,600
C. NON-FINANCIAL SERVICES

Additional Benefits Number

Calamity Assistance 36,000

SEDP CARE Program 25

Retirement Birthday Gift 149

Wedding Assistance 92

D. ACTIVITIES

CALAMITY ASSISTANCE

SEDP-Simbag  sa
Pag-asenso, Inc., (A
Microfinance NGO)
releases calamity
assistance to
members affected
by typhoon Tisoy
after the damage
assessment last
December 2019.

Five hundred
pesos (P 500.00)
were given to

members with partially damaged houses and one thousand pesos (P 1000.00) for those

with totally damaged houses.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT



Calamity assistance was in the form of gift checks (GC) intended for buying some
groceries or other necessities.

To sum up, twenty million peso (P 20, 000.00) calamity assistance was released to more
than thirty-six thousand (36, 000) members affected by the typhoon in the Bicol region
and some parts of Northern Samar. (Source: https://sedp.ph/sedp-releases-calamity-
assistance-members-affected-typhoon-tisoy/)

TREE PLANTING ACTIVITY

Members of SEDP-Simbag sa Pag-asenso, Inc., (A Microfinance NGO) Masbate
branch participated in the Tree Planting Activity held in Tabuc Masbate City with
the staff of Department of Environment and Natural Resources last October 20,
2019, Sunday.

Thirty (30) people, including SEDP Members, who are residents of barangay Tabuc
participated in the said activity together with SEDP staff, barangay officials, and the
staff of DENR-Mobo Masbate, Bakawan (mangrove) Seedlings were planted at the
swamp area of the barangay hoping to increase its number since there are just a
few trees are growing in the area.

Engaging in this kind of activity reflects members’ social-responsibility and
response to Pope Francis’ (Laudato si’) call to care for our common home. (Source:
https://sedp.ph/members-masbate-plant-trees-denr/)
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ZERO WASTE PARISH DAY ACTIVITY

SEDP dares members in
ZERO Waste Challenge
on Parish Day

SEDP- Simbag sa Pag-asenso,
Inc., (A Microfinance NGO)
v S - . . dares members to do the
ZERO Waste Challenge on
celebrating Parish Day these
months of November and
December 2019.

g
4Vd dG3
@

A campaign to promote environmental awareness, Zero Waste Challenge will be participated by
more than forty-thousand (40, 000) members in Albay Operations Group (AOG).

Members during the Parish Day are encouraged to refrain from using plastics but make use of
biodegradable or reusable materials in their stations, supporting Pope Francis’ call in his encyclical
Laudato si’ wherein, people are encouraged to care for the environment or “our common home”.

After the event, centers that participated in the said challenge will be given recognition by their
respective branches.

The celebration of Parish Day will be held on different schedules and in parishes covered by the
Diocese of Legazpi. (Source: https://sedp.ph/sedp-dares-members-zero-waste-challenge-parish-

day/)

MEMBER'S WELFARE

Members of SEDP-Simbag
sa Pag-asenso, Inc., (A
Microfinance NGO) Libon 1
branch were given medical
check-up at the branch
office last August 13, 2019,
Tuesday.

Said check-up is for the
Forty-four (44) members
chosen by their co-
members from the thirty-
two (32) GREEN CENTERS.
Given priority are those
members who have ENT (Ear, Nose, and Throat) disorders who also received free medicines
after the check-up.

These free services are part of Center kO Padaba Ako (COPA), an incentive program given to those
good performing members belonging to equally good performing or color-coded green
centers through the help of the Members Development Services (MDS) Unit and partners.
(Source: https://sedp.ph/check-made-color-coded-green-centers-libonl/)
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STAFF AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES WELFARE

SEDP, MBA and MPC staff attends Management Forum 2019

The staff of SEDP-Simbag sa Pag-asenso, Inc., (A Microfinance NGO), Mutual Benefit Association (MBA) and
Multipurpose Cooperative (MPC) together with the members of the Board of Trustees of SEDP MBA attends
the Management Forum for this year 2019 held at Quezon City last July 22, 2019, Monday.

Mr. Roberto Dalit, SEDP MBA General Manager, Ms. Teresita Galang - SEDP MBA BOT, Ms. Jennifer Casco -
SEDP MBA BOT, Ms. Amy Bombuhay - SEDP MBA BOT, Mr. Andres Paclibar - SEDP MBA BOT, Ms. Ella
Gonzalo- Regional Operations Officer of SEDP, Mr. Enrique Lovifia - Internal Audit Officer and MPC
coordinator Ms. Francia Bobier attended the three day event entitled 2019 Management Forum: Managing
Regulatory, Performance and Systems Risks facilitated by the Micro-insurance MBA Association of the
Philippines, Inc. (MiMAP)

This year's forum focused on giving insights for micro-insurance institutions about strengthening Internal
Audit Policies and strategizing Disaster Risk Reduction and Management.

Included also in the talks and workshops were Efficiency in Governance, Management and Operations and
improvements to-do for Mi-MBA's Performance in ACGS o ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard, wherein
SEDP-MBA garnered the top 3 slots among micro-insurance MBA.

Attendance to said alike forums is a strategy of the institution to gain new insights in leveling-up the services
and products aiding members’ utmost needs like insurance. (Source: https://sedp.ph/sedp-mba-mpc-staff-
attends-management-forum-2019/)
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GOVERNANCE

The Board of Trustees (BOT) is the governing body elected by the members that exercises
the corporate powers of the association. SEDP MBA is composed of Seven (7) Board of
Trustees members.

Among the Seven (7) BOT members two (2) of them are Independent Trustees with
expertise in the field of Finance, Governance and Management. The Independent
Trustees shall serve a Nine (9) year term limit (stipulated in the By Laws amendment) and
shall serve voluntary service to the organization that is of independent of the
management and major substantial stakeholders.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
2018 - 2021

RELATIVE EXPERIENCE:

Executive Director
Social Action Center
Diocese of Legazpi

TRAININGS & SEMINARS ATTENDED:

AMLA & Governance Workshop
Microinsurance Forum

Management Forum
Investment Management Seminar

Learning Session on Governance
ACGS Orientation

OTHER CORPORATE DIRECTORSHIP:

REV. FR. REX PAUL B. ARJONA

President/Chairman
SEDP-Simbag sa Pag-Asenso Inc.
Microinsurance MBA Association of the
ACADEMIC QUALIFICATIONS: Philippines (MiMAP) RIMANSI
M.A. Pastoral Ministry
Loyola School of Theology DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT
Ateneo de Manila University January 1, 2015

Master in Development Management AGE: 41 Years old
Asian Institute of Management

Diploma in Local Government Mgt.
Bicol University
Legazpi City
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REV. FR. JOSE VICTOR E. LOBRIGO

Vice President

ACADEMIC QUALIFICATIONS:

Corporate Governance
Institute of Corporate Directors

MA in Development Studies
Institute of Development Studies
The Hague, The Netherlands

Development Management
Asian Institute of Management

DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT
January 1, 2019

y
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-

JENNIFER CASCO
Secretary

DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT
January 1, 2019

RELATIVE EXPERIENCE:

President/CEO
SEDP - Simbag sa Pag-Asenso Inc.
(A Microfinance NGO)

President
Bicol Consortium for Development Initiatives

Private Sector Representative - Luzon
Microfinance NGO Regulatory Council

Diocesan Oeconumos
Diocese of Legazpi

TRAININGS & SEMINARS ATTENDED:

AMLA & Governance Workshop Resource Person
Microinsurance Forum
Management Forum

Investment Management Forum
ACGS Orientation

OTHER CORPORATE DIRECTORSHIP:
Microfinance Council of the Philippines (MCPI)
SEDP Multi-Purpose Cooperative (SEDP MPC)

AGE: 55 Years old

RELATIVE EXPERIENCE:
Community/Center Leader

TRAININGS & SEMINARS ATTENDED:

AMLA & Governance Workshop
Microinsurance Forum

Management Forum

Learning Session on Governance
ACGS Orientation
Leadership Training/Workshop

OTHER CORPORATE DIRECTORSHIP:
None

AGE: 35 Years old
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RELATIVE EXPERIENCE:
Community/Center Leader

TRAININGS & SEMINARS ATTENDED:

AMLA & Governance Workshop
Microinsurance Forum

Management Forum
Learning Session on Governance

ACGS Orientation
Leadership Training/Workshop

AMY BOMBUHAY OTHER CORPORATE DIRECTORSHIP:

Treasurer None
DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT AGE: 33 Years old
January 1, 2019
RELATIVE EXPERIENCE:

ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR Il
Bicol University, Dept. of Accountancy
Legazpi City

COST ACCOUNTANT
OSSA International

INSURANCE UNDERWRITER
Philippine American Life Insurance Corporation

TRAININGS & SEMINARS ATTENDED:

TERESITA GALANG, CPA AM LA'& Governance Workshop
Independent Trustee Microinsurance Forum
Management Forum

Investment Management Seminar
Learning Session on Governance

ACADEMIC QUALIFICATIONS ACGS Orientation

Doctor in Business Administration = OTHER CORPORATE DIRECTORSHIP:
Aquinas University of Legazpi None

Master in Business Administration  DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT
Divine Word College Legazpi January 1, 2019

Bachelor of Science in Commerce  AGE:

Major in Accounting 57 Years old

Divine Word College of Legazpi

Legazpi City
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RELATIVE EXPERIENCE:

CHAIRPERSON
Diosesan Commission on Temporalities
Diocese of Legazpi

FORMATOR/PROFESSOR
Mater Salutis College Seminary

ADMINISTRATOR
St. Joseph Quasi Parish

TRAININGS & SEMINARS ATTENDED:

REV. FR. JONNATHAN CALLEJA AMLA & Governance Workshop
Independent Trustee Microinsurance Forum

Management Forum

AGE: 46 Years Old Investment Management Seminar
Learning Session on Governance

ACADEMIC QUALIFICATIONS ACGS Orientation

Degree in AB Sacred Theology OTHER CORPORATE DIRECTORSHIP:

Holy Rosary Major Seminary None

Degree in AB Phihlosophy DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT

Mater Salutis College Seminary January 1, 2019
RELATIVE EXPERIENCE:

Community/Center Leader
President - Pioduran Animal Raisers Association
Program Manager - DAR-ECPC

TRAININGS & SEMINARS ATTENDED:

AMLA & Governance Workshop
Microinsurance Forum

Management Forum

Learning Session on Governance

; B e £ ACGS Orientation
ANDRES PACLIBAR Leadership Training/Workshop
Board Member OTHER CORPORATE DIRECTORSHIP:
AGE: 63 Years Old Chairman of the Board - Pioduran ERC Multi-Purpose Cooperative
Board Member - Panganiran Irrigations Association
ACADEMIC QUALIFICATIONS DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT
BSA Major in Animal Science January 1, 2019
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MULTIPLE BOARD SETS

SEDP MBA Board of Trustees has significant roles and functions in the direction of the institution
wherein active participation in all meetings and activities related to its operations are required. In
so doing, SEDP MBA limits the involvement of each Trustee into only a maximum of 3 Board Sets
assignment to other companies so that they can actively participate to all meetings and activities
required by SEDP MBA.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REMUNERATION

The members of the Board of Trustees served the association in a volunteer manner wherein only
reimbursements of transportation and other incidental expenses are allowed as per BIR regulations on
Non-Stock Non-Profit Associations. For the year 2019 the cost of BOT expenses reimbursement for
their attendance on meetings are as follows.

TRUSTEE NAME PARTICULARS AMOUNT RECEIVED
FR. REX PAUL ARJONA P 15,500.00
FR. JOSE VICTOR LOBRIGO P 12,500.00

Reimbursements of Transportation

FR. JONNATHAN CALLEJA d Incidental E duri P 7,000.00

MS. TERESITA GALANG attendance to Board of Trustees and

MS. JENNIFER CASCO . . P 7,500.00
Committee Meetings

MS. AMY BOMBUHAY P 7,500.00

MR. ANDRES PACLIBAR P 12,500.00

BOARD MEETINGS

The regular Board of Trustees Meeting is conducted Quarterly. Documents/Materials for discussion
shall be distributed to the members of the Board of Trustees at least 5 working days before the
conduct of meeting together with the notice of meeting. During the meeting the Management
presents the proposed agenda either for information, for acceptance or for approval.

Regular reports include the quarterly operational highlights and the Financial Statement Status
Report. In the discussion the member of the Board of Trustees strictly scrutinized the comparative
reports versus the approved targets and budgets. By this, the board of Trustees can easily decide
on the matter. By the year 2019, the Board was happy for the performance of SEDP MBA not only
by obtaining the increased in Surplus as stipulated in the Audited Financial Statements but also
recognized the improvement in the ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard (ACGS) performance
evaluation result along this line, the Board of Trustees challenged the management to strive more
to get at least 80% in rating for the next evaluation period.
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NO. OF BOT

NAME OF TRUSTEE MTGS.

FR. REX PAUL ARJONA

FR. JOSE VICTOR LOBRIGO
FR. JONNATHAN CALLEJA
TERESITA GALANG
JENNIFER CASCO

AMY BOMBUHAY

F- T - T K T - R - B -

ANDRES PACLIBAR

MTGS ATTENDED
4 100% 3 3
4 100% 2 2
4 100% 2 2
4 100% 2 2
4 100% 2 2
4 100% 2 2
4 100% 2 2

Total Number of Board & Committee Meetings : 9

BOARD COMMITTEES

SEDP MBA Board Committees were created to oversee and ensure that the priority plans & programs
of the organization is well implemented by the Management through its monitoring function during

reports submission on the scheduled quarterly meeting.

The Audit Committee has the primary function of ensuring that the internal control procedures are
strictly followed by the Management while the Governance Committee is responsible for the review of

the policies, objectives and the mission/vision ensuring that there is no mission/vision drift.

Qualifications of the Audit Committee Chairperson and members shall have work experience and
expertise in financial matters that is why the chairperson of Audit Committee that was selected from

among the elected Board of Trustees members was Ms. Teresita Galang a Certified Public accountant

who is at the same time an educator.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairperson:  Teresita Galang, CPA
Members:
Fr. Jonnathan Calleja

Andres Paclibar

Chairperson:

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Fr. Jonnathan Calleja

Members:
Teresita Galang
Jennifer Casco

FINANCE COMMITTEE

Chairperson: Fr. Jose Victor Lobrigo
Members:

Jennifer Casco

Amy Bombuhay

Jocelyn Diaz

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Chairperson:  Fr. Rex Paul Arjona
Members:
Ms. Remegia Balucio
Teresita Galang

Andres Paclibar
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

At the beginning of the year, the individual Board of Trustees conducted their Annual Performance
Evaluation through Self-Rating and Peer-Rating scheme. A separate evaluation is also conducted for a
per Committee level assessment. The assessment objective is to help each member of the Board of
Trustees to asses what are their strengths and what are to be improved.

COMMITMMENT TO CORPORATE GOOD GOVERNANCE

SEDP MBA is committed in the promotion of corporate good governance within its organization
and among its stakeholders. Together with the Board of Trustees and Management, SEDP MBA will
remain steadfast in monitoring the performance of the organization, strive to make good and
sound decisions, and will hold its governing board accountable for its execution in achieving our
corporate goals.

The Corporate Governance Manual shall serve as its guide in ensuring the organizations practice of
good governance, sustainability and its continuous commitment to its stakeholders in providing
efficient and innovative programs and services for the growth of the community in which we
operate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (RPT) BY THE TRUSTEES AND KEY
EXECUTIVES

The directors and key executives shall be required to disclose their interest in transactions and any
other conflict of interest in SEDP MBA.

SEDP MBA shall seek the assistance of a committee of independent directors to review the
materials and significant RPTs to determine whether they are in the best interest of SEDP MBA and
their members.

SEPD MBA shall either/or forbid or ensure that loans to directors are being conducted at arm’s
length and at market rates.

SUPPLIERS AND CONTRACTORS

The Association engages the assistance of suppliers and/or contractors to provide services that the
association will need for its daily operations. As part of its value chain, the Association will monitor
its engagements with suppliers and contractors to make sure that they practice good governance
and protects the environment. The Association will only engage suppliers/contractors that meet
these standards.

To ensure that engagements with suppliers/contractors will be impartial and transparent; the
Association will conduct a bidding process where a minimum of three (3) suppliers shall submit
their proposal and business profile to the management for background check and validation of
proposal. Selected supplier/contractor shall be issued a legal contract/agreement which will be duly
notarized to make the engagement binding.

The association shall appoint the General Manager/Finance Officer to lead the bidding and selection

process. All decisions/selections shall be approved by the board.
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WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTION POLICY

Simbag sa Emerhensya asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association Inc. (SEDP MBA)
requires Board of Trustees, Management and Employees to observe high standards of
service and personal ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities. As
employees and representatives of SEDP MBA we must practice honesty and integrity in
fulfilling our responsibilities and comply with all applicable laws and regulations.

Whistleblower Policy is intended to encourage and enable employees and others to raise
serious concerns internally so that SEDP MBA can address and correct inappropriate
conduct and actions. It is the responsibility of all board members, officers, employees and
volunteers to report concerns about violations of SEDP MBA's code of ethics or suspected
violations of law or regulations that govern SEDP MBA's operations.

EMPLOYEES, MEMBERS AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES WELFARE AND
DEVELOPMENT

SEDP MBA is committed to maintain a healthy work environment by protecting the
physical, emotional health, and well-being of all employees in the Association.

As part of Employees and members of the Board of Trustees Welfare, continuous
education is always provided through training/seminars, formation activities and as well
as Annual Physical Examination for a healthy workforce.

STAFF BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Management Forum Attendance to Microinsurance Forum
Microinsurance Forum AMLA & Corporate Governance Workshop
Annual Statement Workshop Attendance to Management Forum
Annual Physical Examination Orientation on ACGS
Lenten/Advent Recollection Learning Session on Governance
ACGS Workshop

APPOINMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR TO AUDIT THE 2019 FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The Board of Trustees on its Annual General Meeting appointed the Quilab and Garsuta CPAs
from Cagayan de Oro City to be the External Auditor of SEDP MBA. Fr. Arjona explained that it
was the recommended external auditor of the Management because it has passed the
requirement of Insurance Commission to conduct an audit fo MBAs. Below is the Fees &
Incidental Expenses proposed.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT



FEES AND INCIDENTAL EXPENSES
Professional Fees

For the services outlined above, we will bill you for our professional fees the amount in pesos:
SEVENTY-FIVE THOUSAND PESOS ONLY (P75,000)

Out-of-Pocket Costs

As the usual practice in our profession, we will bill you for the out-of-pocket expenses we will incur
in this engagement representing substantially the cost of transportation, board and lodging,
communications and the reproduction of our reports to the Association.

Our charges, which have been billed consistently during our previous engagements, would be
guided

by our existing policies as follows:
a) Food Expenses

An employee on official business outside of Cagayan de Oro City shall receive a fixed per diem for
food expenses in the amount of FIVE HUNDRED PESOS (P500) per day for meals not provided by
clients. In case of broken claims for meal allowance, an employee may claim ONE HUNDRED PESOS
(P100) for breakfast and TWO HUNDRED PESOS (P200) each for lunch and dinner. No receipts are
required in liquidating meals per diem.

b) Lodging Expenses

Unless provided by client, employees on official business trips are required to secure safe and
decent lodgings in their destinations. Lodging expenses are based on actual rates and must be
liquidated with actual receipts using the Travel Liquidation Report.

) Transportation

Employees on mission outside of the home base shall have their actual transportation expenses
reimbursed based on actual receipts submitted.

d) Report Reproduction

We shall charge the Association with a fixed cost for report reproduction of SIX HUNDRED PESOS
ONLY (P600.00) per printed reports for the Board of Directors and Management and reports to be
submitted to the BIR, SEC and IC. We will be printing our reports based on the following
allotments:

For BOD and management - 5
For SEC-6
ForlIC-5
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For BIR-3
Total 19

Please let us know in advance if you need more or less of the copies for BOD and management.
e) Other Costs

Other necessary costs that would be incurred (such as reproduction costs of audit-related
documents, mailing, communication and others) would also be charged to you based on
reimbursements basis.

Our fees are based on the time required by the staffs assigned to the engagement. Individual
hourly rates of our staff vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and the experience
and skills required.
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COVERS SHEET
for

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LLLL LI o]2[1]4]1]

SEC Registration Number

[_[o]o]7]-]2]4]5]-[s]3]7]

Tax Identification Number

any
[s[1[m[e[a]e| [s|a] |e[m|e[r]n|e[n]s[v]a] [als[i]n] [p]ale[p]a]e] |
[p[a[s[e[e[u[r[o] |m|ulr]ula]e] [s[e[N[e[F[ T TTTTTTTT1]
[a[s[s[ofc|t]a]r[t]o|n] [(|s|e[o]p] [w[s[aD[.T T\N[e[. [T TTT]
AEEERNEEENEENNNREEEEEENNNNNNRREND
IENNREEEEEERNEREEERENNNNRRRREREER
Principal Office (No. 2y/City/Town/Province)
[S[R[o] TFIL[o[o[R[ []ne[ [c[u[a[n[c[e[~ [ eIl o[ [N[.] ]
(c[a]r]n|e[o[R[a[L] |c|o[m]po[u[n[o[.[ [a]c[s]al] [T [T [[[]
(o t]s|rIr[1[c]v].] [[e[e]als]e[s[ [e[ T[T T[T TTT T[]
[l efe[ofeleloinfels] [T TTTITTTTTTTTTTTTTTT]
(Form Type) (Department Requiring the Repon) (Secondary License Type, if Applicable)
[A[[F]s] LLIIT] [T
COMPANY INFORMATION
Company’s Email Address Company s Telephone Number Mobile Number

Isedp mba@yahoo.com.ph | ' 052-481-4449 | L ’

No. of Stockholder Annual Mceting ( Month/Day) Fiscal Year (Month/Day)
I i May 25 | | 12/31/2019 |

CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION
The designated contact person MUST be an Officer of the Corporation

Name of Contact Person Email Address Telephone Number/s Mobile Number/s
l Fr. Rex Paul B. Arjona ” rparjona@yahoo.com ” 052-481-4449 —H;0917-558-1719 I
I San Ramo:():;::::g‘r;::;\cd:;i;gas, Daraga Albay |

Note In case of death. resignation or cessation of office of the officer designated as contact person, such incidents shall be reported to the
Commission within thirty (30) calendar days from the occurrence thereo! with information and complete contact details of the new contact person
designated 3
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CERTIFICATION | quilabgarsuta.com

Accreditatians

PRC/BOA 7787 07 05 20

SEC Group C 0358-F 07.15.21
BIR 16-007506-000-2019 2.15.22
NEA 2017-10-0043 10.09.20

IC 2017-004-0 12.07.20

INSURANCE COMMISSION BSP Group B 07.31.20

» . CDA 119-AF 10.17.20
1071 United Nations Avenue il
Manila
Gentlemen:

In connection with our engagement in the audit of the financial statements of Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin
Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2019, we
hereby certify:

1. That there were no weakness or breach in the internal control and risk management of the Association that
are material enough to warrant modifications of our report nor were there matters that came to our attention
that need our direct reporting to the Insurance Commission (IC);

2. That we have nothing to report to the Insurance Commission ( IC) with regard to items enumerated under
Section 4.3 of Circular No. 2019-39, that came to our attention during the audit, e.g.: (i) fraud or error; (ii)
losses aggregating 10% of consolidated assets of the Association; (ii) significant going-concem issues; (iv)
material breach of IC rules and regulations; (v) material internal control weaknesses: and (vi) findings on
matters related to corporate governance; and

3. That the engagement partner, manager, and auditor-in-charge of the engagement and the members of
their immediate families do not have any direct or indirect financial interest with the Association, and their
independence is not considered impaired under the circumstances specified in the Code of Professional
Ethics for Certified Public Accountants.

This certification is issued in compliance with the requirements mandated by the Insurance Commission (IC)in
its Circular No. 2019-39, dated August 8, 2019.

Done this 30" day of June 2020 at Cagayan de Oro City, Philippines.

S\ '

\

" Rico p. qUTTAB

Engagement Partner

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 30 day of June 2020 affiant exhibited to me his PRC
Identification Number 0046034 valid until December 29, 2020.

NOTARY Py ‘

0. o, 47 - Ly e

Page No. : 'Br:,ns;lxrlall CGNmm slz.::!h'ln: 031;'-2220

Book No. : ) . eceipt No. [ 06510/ J4n. 4, 2020

Series of 2020, 'WCLE NG VI-004 373 1 olﬁ:né.ss'szsonzzu
TIN No.\g47.407-462
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Simbag sa Emerhensya asin Dagdag Paseguro
SEDPMBA Mutual Benefit Association Inc. (SEDP MBA)
3/F The Chancery, Cathedral Compound
Old Albay District, Legazpi City, Philippines
MICRCY Telefax: (052) 481-4449
MERIFXEE Email: sedp_mba@yahoo.com.ph

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA),
Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of its financial statements for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs), and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Association's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease
operations, or has not realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Trustees is responsible for overseeing the Association's financial reporting process.

The Board of Trustees reviews and approves the financial statements and submits the same to the members of
the Association.

Quilab & Garsuta, CPAs, the independent auditors appointed by the Board of Trustees for the periods
December 31, 2019 and 2018, have audited the financial statements of the Association in accordance with
Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs), and in their reports to the Board of Trustees, have expressed their
opinion on the fairmess of presentation upon completion of such audits.

June 14, 2020, Legazpi City, Albay, Philippines.

ROBERTO A. DALIT

MBA Manager

- f

A
A AM—Z% gZMBUHAY
- Aredsurer
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Simbag sa Emerhensya asin Dagdag Paseguroc

@éngﬁPWiﬁﬂ Mutual Benefit Association Inc. (SEDP MBA)

3/F The Chancery, Cathedral Compound
Old Albay District, Legazpi City, Philippines
ICRCY  Telefax: (052) 481-4449
INsOEaN e Email: sedp_mba@yahoo.com.ph

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURNS

The management of Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA),
Inc. is responsible for all information and representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Return for the
year ended December 31, 2019. Management is likewise responsible for all information and representations
contained in the financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the same reporting
period. Furthermore, management is responsible for all information and representations contained in all the
other tax returns filed for the reporting period, including, but not limited, to the valued added tax and/or
percentage tax returns, withholding tax returns, documentary stamp tax retumns, and any and all other tax
returns.

In this regard, management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the year ended December
31,2019, and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in accordance with the books and records of
Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc., complete and
correct in all material respects.

Management likewise affirms that:

a) The Annual Income Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the National
Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other issuances of the
Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue;

b)  Any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial statements
pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation of the income tax return pursuant to tax
accounting rules have been reported as reconciling items and maintained in the Association's books
and records in accordance with the requirements of Revenue Regulation No. 8-2007 and other
relevant issuances; and

¢) Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc. has
filed all applicable returns, reports and statements required to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the
reporting period, and all taxes and other impositions shown thereon to be due and payable have been
paid for the reporting period, except those contested in good faith.

June 14, 2020, Legazpi City, Albay, Philippines.

Ve

2

| ”
FR. REX PAUL BfARJONA ROBERTO A. DALIT
Présidenf\” MBA Manager

©n
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS s R
TO ACCOMPANY INCOME TAX RETURNS NEA 2017104043100 20

The Board of Trustees and Members of

Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro
Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc.

3/F The Chancery, Cathedral Compound

Old Albay District, Legazpi City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro
Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc., for the year ended December 31, 2019, on which we have
rendered the attached report dated June 14, 2020.

In compliance with Revenue Regulations V-20, we are stating that no partner of our Firm is related by
consanguinity or affinity to the President, General Manager, or other members of the Board of Trustees of the
Association.

QUILAB & GARSUTA, CPAs
By:

RICO m}ILAB

Partner
CPA Cert. No. 46034
TIN No. 129-040-841
PRC/BOA Cert. No. 7787 (7.05.2020)
BIR No. 16-007506-001-2019 (2.15.2022)
IC No. SP-2017/025-R (12.07.2020)
SEC No. 0906-AR-3 (7.15.2021)
PTR No. 4556063 A
January 2, 2020

Cagayan de Oro City
June 14, 2020
Cagayan de Oro City, Philippines
CAGAYAN DE ORO CITY OFFICE: 2F, Execulive Centrum Building, J. R Borja Stieet, 9000 Contact Addresses: (088) 856-4401, 231-6365, (08822) 72-7515, qch w(@yuhoo.com, ricopguilab@gmai com
GENERAL SANTOS CITY OFFICE: MF, RORDC Building, Pioneer Avenue, 9500 Contat Addresses: (083) 552-4043, 09175966762, Ihg@quilabgarsuta.com, [gorsula@yahoo.com
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS B v il
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1C 2017-004-0 12,07 20
BSP Group B 07.31.20
CDA T19-AF 10.17 20
MISEREOR
The Board of Trustees and Members of
Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro % PR
Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc. f‘
3/F The Chancery, Cathedral Compound y //
Old Albay District, Legazpi City c\? ' {
N /
Report on the Financial Statements %‘Q

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benlefit
Association (SEDP MBA), Inc., which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2019
and 2018, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes if fund
balances and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to financial statements comprising
of a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all materials respects, the financial
position of Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc. as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended, in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our responsibilities

under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics), together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Association's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association’s financial reporting process.
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QUILAB & GARSUTA, CPAs
-2.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association's ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audits,

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Requlations 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The supplementary information on taxes, licenses and fees in Note 25 to the financial statements is
presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements, taken as a whole.
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Report on the Supplementary Information Required by Revised SRC Code Rule 68, (2019 Version)

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The supplementary schedule in Annex 1: Effective Standards and Interpretations Under PFRS as of
December 31, 2019, Adopted Beginning January 1, 2019, is presented for the purpose of complying with the
requirements of Part 1, Section 5 of the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, (2019 Version), and are
not required parts of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the Association's
management. The information in such supplementary schedules has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole and has been
prepared in accordance with Revised SRC Rule 68.

QUILAB & GARSUTA, CPAs
By:

RICO &UILAB

Partner
CPA Cert. No. 46034
TIN No. 129-040-841
PRC/BOA Cert. No. 7787 (7.05.2020)
BIR No. 16-007506-001-2019 (2.15.2022)
IC No. SP-2017/025-R (12.07.2020)
SEC No. 0906-AR-3 (7.15.2021)
PTR No. 4556063 A
January 2, 2020
Cagayan de Oro City

June 14, 2020
Cagayan de Oro City, Philippines

CAGAYAN DE ORO CITY OFFICE: 2F, Execulive Centrum Building, J. R. Borja Strea, 9000 Contadt Addresses: (088) BS6-4401, 231-6365, (08822) 72-7515, ycb_co@ywhoo.com, sicopquilab@gmail.com
GENERAL SANTOS CITY OFFICE: MF, RDRDC Building, Pioneer Avenue, 9500 Contact Addresses: (083) 552-4043, 09175966762, thg@quilabarsuta.com, fyarsuta@yohoo.com
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc.

December 31, 2019 2018
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) P49,100,301 R40,001,225
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) 553,464 595,285
Other assets (Note 6) 74,987 56,279
Total Current Assets 49,728,752 40,652,789
Non-Current Assets
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) 20,000,000 20,000,000
Fumniture, fixtures and office equipment — net (Note 7) 26,214 78,301
Investments in debt and equity securities woe 8) 201,619,453 178,579,465
Total Non-Current Assets 221,645,667 198,657,766
P271,374,419 R239,310,555
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables (Note 9) P7,873,069 6,687,808
Insurance contract liabilities (Note 10) 785,189 1,774,594
Total Current Liabilities 8,658,258 8,462,402
Non-Current Liabilities
Aggregate reserves for unexpired risks (Note 71) 154,117,880 130,468,832
Total Liabilities 162,776,138 138,931,234
Fund Balances
Guaranty Fund (Note 72) 28,216,049 24,319,679
Special Funds (Note 13) 46,519,319 48,273,395
General Fund (Note 74) 32,555,228 27,786,247
Revaluation reserve on investments at FVTOCI vote §) 1,307,685 -
Total Fund Balances 108,598,281 100,379,321
P271,374,419 R239,310,555

See Nole to Financial Statements
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc.

Years Ended December 31 2019 2018
REVENUE
Gross members' premium contributions (Note 15) P77,927,394 B66,747,177
Less contributions to Guaranty Fund (Note 72) 3,896,370 3,337,359
Net members' premium contributions 74,031,024 63,409,818
Interest and investment income (Notes 4 and 8) 8,009,177 5,461,114
Membership fees (Note 75) 2,518,223 2,392,228
Other income 5,699 5,553
Total Revenue 84,564,123 71,268,713
BENEFITS AND OPERATING EXPENSES
Benefits and claims paid to members (Notes 10 and 15) 27,694,781 25,452,905
Increase in aggregate reserves for unexpired risks (Note 1) 23,649,048 19,574,792
Collection costs (Note 9 and 18) 5,490,951 4,919,345
Membership enrollment and marketing expenses 2,411,058 954,736
Total Members' Benefits and Expenses 59,245,838 50,901,778
Compensation and employees' benefits (Note 16) 2,170,378 1,983,254
General and administrative expenses (Note 77) 2,552,115 2,256,081
Depreciation (Note 7) 52,087 55,998
Total Benefits and Operating Expenses 64,020,418 55,197,111
NET SUPLUS FOR THE YEAR 20,543,705 16,071,602
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Item that may not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
Changes in value of investments at FVTOCI (Note 8) 1,307,685 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR P21,851,390 R16,071,602

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc.

December 31, 2019 2018

GUARANTY FUND (Note 12)

Opening balances P24,319,679 R20,982,320
Contributions from members during the year 3,896,370 3,337,359
Closing balances 28,216,049 24,319,679
APPROPRIATED SPECIAL FUNDS (Note 13)
Members' Benefits Fund 20,551,751 26,488,244
Capacity Building Fund 8,515,803 6,938,331
Members' Education Fund 8,284,889 6,468,681
Research and Development Fund 5,368,393 4,895,151
Acquisition of Systems and Equipment Fund 3,798,483 3,482,988
46,519,319 48,273,395
GENERAL FUND
Opening balances 217,786,247 23,620,970
Appropriations to Special Funds for 2018 (Note 14) - (11,906,325)
Appropriations to Special Funds for 2019 (Note 74) (15,774,724) -
Net surplus for the year 20,543,705 16,071,602
Closing balances 32,555,228 27,786,247

REVALUATION RESERVE ON INVESTMENTS AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (FVTOCI)
Opening balances -
Changes in value of investments in equity securities at FVTOCI (Note 8) 1,307,685 -
Closing balances 1,307,685 -

P108,598,281 R100,379,321

See Notes (o Financial Statements
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc.

Years Ended December 31, 2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net surplus for the year P20,543,705 R16,071,602
Add (deduct) back adjustments for:
Increase in aggregate reserves for unexpired risks (Vote 11) 23,649,048 19,574,792
Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) (Note 5) 103,494 103,494
Provision for retirement benefits (Vote 9) 304,356 472,521
Depreciation (Note 7) 52,087 55,998
Interest and investments income (Notes 4 and 8) (8,009,177) (5,461,114)
Operating surplus before changes in working capital 36,643,513 30,817,293
Add (deduct) changes in working capital, excluding cash:
Increase in trade and other receivables (Note 5) (61,673) (20,031,224)
Decrease (increase) in other assets (Note 6) (18,708) 83,714
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables (Noe 9) 880,905 (327,905)
Increase (decrease) in insurance contract liabilities (Note 70) (989,405) 1,106,973
Net Cash Provided from Operating Activities 36,454,632 11,648,851
CASH FLOWS FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and investment income (Notes 4 and 8) 8,009,177 5,461,114
Increase in investments in debt and equity securities (Note 8) (21,732,303) (29,316,724)
Additions to furniture, fixtures and office equipment (iote 7) - (11,700)
Net Cash Used for Investing Activities (13,723,126) (23,867,310)
CASH FLOWS FOR FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in Guaranty Fund (Note 72) 3,896,370 3,337,359
Decrease in Special Funds (Note 13) (17,528,800) (5,105,195)
Net Cash Used for Financing Activities (13,632,430) (1,767,836)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 9,099,076 (13,986,295)
OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 40,001,225 53,987,520
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Vote 4) P49,100,301 P40,001,225

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc.
As of and the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Note 1

Organization and Tax Exemption

The Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc. (referred to
in the following sections as ‘Association’) was organized by the members of Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin
Dagdag Paseguro, Inc., 'to extend financial assistance to its members, spouse, siblings, children and parents in
the form of death benefits, sickness benefits, provident savings and loan redemption assistance: to ensure
continued access to benefits/resources by actively involving the members in the management of the
Association that will include the implementation of policies and procedures geared towards sustainability and
improved services.' It was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 17,
2009 and obtained its secondary license from the Insurance Commission (IC) on August 27, 2009. It is
governed by a Board of Trustees which receives no compensation. It devotes all its income for the purposes
enumerated in its Articles of Incorporation.

The Association is holding office at the 3 Floor of The Chancery Building, Cathedral Compound, Albay District,
Legazpi City, Albay, free of charge, but it shares on the costs of monthly utilities of the building. As at December
31, 2019, the Association has a total membership of 72,253,

In accordance with Section 30 (C) of the National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, the Association is
exempted from the payment of taxes from income derived by it.

Note 2
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Statement of Compliance

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRSs) and Philippine Interpretations-IFRIC. PFRSs include statements named PFRSs and
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC),
Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC) which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and adopted by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

Because the Association is a supervised entity by the Insurance Commission (IC), it also abides by the regulations
of the Commission particularly those that are set forth under Section 189 of The Amended Insurance Code and
with IC Circular Letter No. 2014-41 Standard Chart of Accounts (SCA) for MBAs, and all applicable IC Circular
Letters and accounting requirements. These regulations and requirements are substantially compliant with
PFRSs and the Revised SRC Rule 68 (2019).

The financial statements have been prepared under the assumptions that the Association operates on a going
concern basis,
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Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis, except for financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of the year, as explained in the following accounting policies. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Association
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date, Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in the financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that
are within the scope of PFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realizable value in PAS/IAS 2 or value in use in PAS/IAS 36.

The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Association’s functional and
presentation currency and all values are recorded to the nearest peso except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of the financial statements made use of estimates, assumptions and judgments by
management based on management's best knowledge of current and historical facts as at statement of
financial position date. These estimates and judgments affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
contingent liabilities as at statement of financial position date, as well as affecting the reported income and
expenses for the year. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS Standards that are Effective for the Current Year

Impact of Initial Application of PFRS 16 Leases

In the current year, the Association has applied PFRS 16 that is effective for annual periods that begin on or
after January 1, 2019. The date of initial application of PFRS 16 for the Association is January 1, 2019.

PFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduces significant
changes to lessee accounting by removing the distinction between operating and finance lease and requiring
the recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at commencement for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets. In contrast to lessee accounting, the requirements for lessor accounting
have remained largely unchanged.

The impact of the adoption of PFRS 16 on the Association's financial statements is described below.

Impact of PFRS 16 Leases on the Association as a Lessee

PFRS 16 changes how the Association accounts for leases previously classified as operating leases under
PASI/IAS 17, which were off-balance sheet items. Applying PFRS 16, for all leases (except as noted below), the
Association: (a) recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position, initially
measured at the present value of the future lease payments; (b) recognizes depreciation of right-of-use assets
and interest on lease liabilities in profit or loss; and (c) separates the total amount of cash paid into a principal
portion (presented within financing activities) and interest (presented within financing activities) in the statement
of cash flows.

Lease incentives (e.g. rent-free period) are recognized as part of the measurement of the right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities whereas under PAS/IAS 17 they resulted in the recognition of a lease incentive, amortized
as a reduction of rental expenses generally on a straight-line basis. Under PFRS 16, right-of-use assets are
tested for impairment in accordance with PAS/IAS 36,
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For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets, the Association has
opted to recognize a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permitted by PFRS 16. This expense (if incurred)
is presented within ‘general and administrative expenses' (See Note 17.) in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Impact in 2019 of the Initial Application of PFRS 16

The Association has determined initially that all of its leases as a lessee indicated that the existing contracts, if
there are any, are short-term leases and are leases of low-value assets. The Association generally recognizes
lease expense on short-term and low-value leases on a straight-line basis and presented as ‘rent' in the
statement of profit or loss. PFRS 16 has been determined to be generally not applicable to the Association as it
has no significant leases that would fall under the provisions of PFRS 16. For instance, the Association enjoys
free use of the building facilities of the Roman Catholic Bishop of Legaspi, Inc. It shares on the costs of monthly
utilities of the building.

The adoption of PFRS 16 therefore has had no material impact in the financial statements of the Association.

Impact of PFRS 16 Leases on the Association as a Lessor

PFRS 16 does not change substantially how the Association accounts for leases as a lessor. Under PFRS 16, the
Association continues to classify leases as either finance leases or operating leases and account for those two
types of leases differently. PFRS 16, however, has changed and expanded the disclosures required, in particular
with regard to how the Association manages the risks arising from its residual interest in leased assets. The
Association is not a lessor of properties.

Applying Amendments to PFRS Standards and Interpretations Effective January 1, 2019

In the current year, the Association has applied a number of amendments to PFRS Standards and
Interpretations issued by the IASB and concurred by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council
(FRSC) that are effective for an annual period that begins on or after January 1, 2019. Their adoption has not
had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements.

Amendments to PFRS 9 Prepayment Fealures with Negalive Compensation

The Association has adopted the amendments to PFRS 9 for the first time in the current year. The amendments
to PFRS 9 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a prepayment feature meets the ‘solely payments of
principal and interest' (SPPI) condition, the party exercising the option may pay or receive reasonable
compensation for the prepayment irrespective of the reason for prepayment. In other words, financial assets
with prepayment features with negative compensation do not automatically fail SPPI.

The adoption of the amendment did not have an impact on the current year's financial statements as the
Association does not have prepayment features with negative compensation.

Amendments to PAS/IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that PFRS 9, including its impairment requirements, applies to other financial
instruments in an associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied. These include long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the entity's net investment in an associate or joint venture. The entity
applies PFRS 9 to such long-term interests before it applies PAS/IAS 28. In applying PFRS 9, the entity does
not take account of any adjustments to the carrying amount of long-term interests required by PAS/IAS 28 (i.e.,
adjustments to the carrying amount of long-term interests arising from the allocation of losses of the investee or
assessment of impairment in accordance with PAS/IAS 28).

The amendments to PAS/IAS 28 have had no impact on the Association as it has no associates and joint
ventures.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 C 'ycle Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations,
IFRS 117 Joint Arrangements, IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The Association has adopted the amendments included in the Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015~
2017 Cycle for the first time in 2019, which adoption have had no impact on the Association in 2019.
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e IAS 12 Income Taxes - The amendments clarify that the Association should recognize the income tax
consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where
the Assaciation originally recognized the transactions that generated the distributable profits. This is
the case irrespective of whether different tax rates apply to distributed and undistributed profits. These
amendments however are not applicable to the Association which is a nonprofit entity.

o |AS 23 Borrowing Costs - The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds
that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalization rate on general borrowings. The
amendments do not affect the Association as it has no borrowings.

o IFRS 3 Business Combinations — The amendments clarify that when the Association obtains control of
abusiness that is a joint operation, the Association applies the requirements for a business
combination achieved in stages, including remeasuring its previously held interest (PHI) in the joint
operation at fair value. The PHI to be remeasured includes any unrecognized assets, liabilities and
goodwill relating to the joint operation. The amendments have not affected the Association as it has no
transactions related to business combinations.

e IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements — The amendments clarify that when a party that participates in, but does
not have joint control of, a joint operation that is a business obtains joint control of such a joint
operation, the Association does not remeasure its PHI in the joint operation. The amendments have
not affected the Association as it has no transactions related to join arrangements.

Amendments to PAS/IAS 19 Employee Benefits Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that the past service cost (or of the gain or loss on settlement) is calculated by measuring
the defined benefit liability (asset) using updated assumptions and comparing benefits offered and plan assets
before and after the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) but ignoring the effect of the asset ceiling (that
may arise when the defined benefit plan is in a surplus position). PAS/IAS 19 is now clear that the change in the
effect of the asset ceiling that may result from the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) is determined in a
second step and is recognized in the normal manner in other comprehensive income.

The paragraphs that relate to measuring the current service cost and the net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) have also been amended. The Association will now be required to use the updated assumptions
from this remeasurement to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting
period after the change to the plan. In the case of the net interest, the amendments make it clear that for the
period post plan amendment, the net interest is calculated by multiplying the net defined benefit liability (asset)
as remeasured under PAS/IAS 19:99 with the discount rate used in the remeasurement (also taking into
account the effect of contributions and benefit payments on the net defined benefit liability (asset).

The Association has not adopted the amendments of PAS/IAS 19 in the current year as it is not yet complying
with the requirements of PAS/IAS 19 in measuring its retirement benefit obligations which it considers
immaterial at the moment.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23 sets out how to determine the accounting tax position when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments. The Interpretation requires the Association to: (a) determine whether uncertain tax positions are
assessed separately or as a group; and (b) assess whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be used, by an entity in its income tax filings. If yes, the
Association should determine its accounting tax position consistently with the tax treatment used or planned to
be used in its income tax filings. If no, the Association should reflect the effect of uncertainty in determining its
accounting tax position using either the most likely amount or the expected value method.

The Association is a non-profit entity and the IFRIC 23 amendment has had no impact on the Association,
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New and Revised PFRS Standards in Issue but not Yet Effective

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the Association has not applied the following new and
revised PFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective [and, in some cases] had not yet been
adopted by the Philippine FRSC:

o IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

e IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

e Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a business

e Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of material

e Conceptual Framework Amendments to References (o the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

The management and the Board of Trustees do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will
have a material impact on the financial statements of the Association in future periods, except as noted below:

PFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts and supersedes PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. PFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified
for insurance contracts with direct participation features, described as the variable fee approach. The general
model is simplified if certain criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining coverage using the premium
allocation approach.

The general model uses current assumptions to estimate the amount, timing and uncertainty of future cash
flows and it explicitly measures the cost of that uncertainty. It takes into account market interest rates and the
impact of policyholders' options and guarantees.

The Standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021, with early
application permitted. It is applied retrospectively unless impracticable, in which case the modified retrospective
approach or the fair value approach is applied. An exposure draft Amendments to IFRS 17 addresses concerns
and implementation challenges that were identified after IFRS 17 was published. One of the main changes
proposed is the deferral of the date of initial application of IFRS 17 by one year to annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021. The Philippine Insurance Commission (IC) however has approved to defer the
implementation of IFRS 17 (it will become PFRS 17) to January 1, 2023, per IC Circular Letter No. 218-69,
dated December 28, 2018.

For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of initial application is the start if the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the Standard, and the transition date is the beginning of the period
immediately preceding the date of initial application.

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses
resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate
or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are recognized in the parent's profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate
or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are recognized in the former parent's
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in the new associate or joint venture,

The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the IASB; however, earlier application of the
amendments is permitted. The management and the Board of Trustees of the Association do not anticipate that
the application of these amendments may have an impact on the Association's financial statements in future
periods should such transactions arise.
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Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a ‘Business’

The amendments clarify that while businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated
set of activities and assets to qualify as a business. To be considered a business an acquired set of activities
and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. Additional guidance is provided that helps to determine whether a substantive
process has been acquired.

The amendments introduce an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business, Under the optional concentration test, the acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar assets.

The amendments are applied prospectively to all business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with early
application permitted.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of ‘Material’

The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not
intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. The concept of ‘obscuring’ material
information with immaterial information has been included as part of the new definition.

The threshold for materiality influencing users has been changed from ‘could influence’ fo ‘could reasonably be
expected to influence’,

The definition of material in IAS 8 has been replaced by a reference to the definition of material in 1AS 1. In
addition, the IASB amended other Standards and the Conceptual Framework that contain a definition of
material or refer to the term 'material’ to ensure consistency.

The amendments are applied prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with earlier
application permitted.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IF, RS Standards

Together with the revised Conceptual Framework, which became effective upon publication on 29 March 2018,
the IASB has also issued Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards. The
document contains amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3,IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, 1AS 38,
IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32.

Not all amendments, however, update those pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes from the
framework so that they refer to the revised Conceptual Framework. Some pronouncements are only updated to
indicate which version of the Framework they are referencing to (the IASC Framework adopted by the IASB in
2001, the IASB Framework of 2010, or the new revised Framework of 2018) or to indicate that definitions in the
Standard have not been updated with the new definitions developed in the revised Conceptual Framework.

The amendments, where they actually are updates, are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020, with early application permitted.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: (a) in the principal
market for the asset o liability; or (b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Association.
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The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair
value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Association uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Association
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the financial statements at cost. Cash comprise unrestricted cash on
hand, deposits held at call with banks, and time deposits with banks that can be pre-terminated anytime without
significant risk of change in value. Cash equivalents (including those invested in a trust fund) represent short-term,
highly liquid investments maturing in 90 days to 365 days from the date of acquisition that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Association's statement of financial position when
the Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately
in profit or loss.

Financial Assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognized financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value, depending on the classification of
the financial assets.

Classification of Financial Assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortized cost: (a) the
financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and (b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT



.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI): (a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and (b) the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Despite the foregoing, the Association may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial
recognition of a financial asset: (a) the Association may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria are met [see (iii) below]; and (b)
the Association may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch [see (iv) below].

(i) Amortized Cost and Effective Interest Method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are
credit-impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying
amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows,
including expected credit losses, to the amortized cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortized cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortized cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortized cost. For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognized
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting
periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Association recognizes interest income by
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset from initial
recognition. The calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial assat
subsequently improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired.

(i) Debt Instruments Classified as at FVTOC]
Debt instruments classified as at FVTOC| are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs,
Subsequently, changes in the carrying amount of these financial assets as a result of foreign exchange
gains and losses (see below), impairment gains or losses (see below), and interest income calculated
using the effective interest method (see (i) above) are recognized in profit or loss.
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The amounts that are recognized in profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would have been
recognized in profit or loss if these financial assets were to be measured at amortized cost. All other
changes in the carrying amount of these financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of revaluation reserve on investments. When these financial assets
are derecognized, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

(i) Equity Instruments Designated as at FVTOC!
On initial recognition, the Association may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not
permitted if the equity investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognized by an
acquirer in a business combination.

A financial asset is held for trading if: (1) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the
near term; or (2) on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Association manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (3)
itis a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument).

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOC| are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the revaluation reserve on investments.
The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
instead, it is transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with
PFRS 9, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

(iv) Financial Assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI [see (i) to

(iii) above] are measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

e Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Association designates
an equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a
business combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition [see (i) above].

e Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria [see (i) and
(ii) above] are classified as at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortized
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (so
called ‘accounting mismatch') that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing
the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Association has not designated any debt
instruments as at FVTPL,

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognized in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a designated hedging
relationship (the Association has no hedge investments). The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘investment income’
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner described the Association's significant accounting policies.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Association recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments that
are measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables and contract assets. The
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amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Association always recognizes lifetime ECL (expected credit losses) for trade receivables, contract assets
and lease receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Association's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Association recognizes lifetime ECL when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Association measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

(i) Significant Increase in Credit Risk
In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Association compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Association considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort, Forward-looking information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Association's debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organizations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate to the
Association’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

e Anactual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument's external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e Significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less
than its amortized cost;

o Existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to mest its debt obligations;

e Anactual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;
o Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor; and
e Anactual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological

environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its
debt obligations.
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Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Association presumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Association has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Association assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if: (1) the financial instrument has a
low risk of default; (2) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term; and (3) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Association considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there are no past due amounts.

The Association regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

(i) - Definition of Default
The Association considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable: (1) when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or (2) information
developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Association, in full (without taking into account any collateral held by the Association).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Association considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Association has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following events: (a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower; (b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event (see (ii) above); (c) the
lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; (d) it is
becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or (e) the
disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv) Write-Off Policy
The Association writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe

financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Association's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognized in profit or loss.

(v) Measurement and Recognition of Expected Credit Losses (FCL)
The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as
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described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets' gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical trend, the Association's understanding of the specific
future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Association in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Association expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a lease receivable, the
cash flows used for determining the expected credit losses is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with PFRS 16.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Association is required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Association expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

If the Association has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Association measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which the simplified approach was used.

The Association recognizes an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not
reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Association derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity. If the Association neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Association recognizes its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Association retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Association continues to recognize the
financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or loss. In addition, on
derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the revaluation reserve on investments is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on
derecognition of an investment in an equity instrument which the Association has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the revaluation reserve on
investments is not reclassified to profit or loss but is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities and Equity

Classification as Debt or Equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities.
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Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL. However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, and financial guarantee contracts issued
by the Association, are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below,

Financial Liabilities at FV/TPL
Financial liabilties are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination, (ii) held for trading or (iii) designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: (a) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or (b) on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Association manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
(c) itis a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer in a
business combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: (1) such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or
(2) the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed,
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Association's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis: or
(3) it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair
value recognized in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a designated hedging relationship. The
net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included
in the ‘general and administrative expenses’ line item (Note 17) in profit or loss.

However, for financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value
of liability is recognized in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk that are
recognized in other comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are
transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition of the financial liability.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts issued by the Association that are designated by the
Association as at FVTPL are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities Measured Subsequently at Amortized Cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, (if) held for
trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortized cost of a financial liability.
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Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

The Association derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Association’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

When the Association exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with the
substantially different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Association accounts for substantial modification of
terms of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of
anew liability. It is assumed that the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective rate is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial liability. If the modification is not substantial, the difference between: (1) the carrying amount of
the liability before the modification; and (2) the present value of the cash flows after modification is recognized in
profit or loss as the modification gain or loss within other gains and losses.

Furniture, Fixtures and Office E quipment

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Such cost includes
the cost of replacing part of such furniture, fixtures and office equipment when that cost is incurred, if the
recognition criteria are met. Interests incurred on borrowed funds used to finance the construction of properties
during the construction period are capitalized. Other borrowing costs are expensed.

An item of furniture, fixtures and office equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

(1) IT equipment, 5 years; and
(2) Furniture, fixtures and office equipment, 5 years.

The carrying values of Association's furniture, fixtures and office equipment are reviewed for impairment when
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and
where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of Association’s furniture, fixtures and office equipment is the
greater of net selling price and value in use, The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an
asset in an arm's-length transaction.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed
from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is credited or charged to income. The cost of major renovations
is included in the carrying amount of the asset when itis probable that future economic benefits arising from the
renovations will flow to the organization.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Association’s furniture, fixtures and office equipment and other assets are subject to impairment testing.
Individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable,

For purposes of assessing impaiment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset
or cash-generating unit's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value, reflecting the market conditions less cost to sell, and value in use, based on an internal evaluation of

2019 ANNUAL REPORT



-15-

discounted cash flow. All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to the recoverable amount
resulting in the reversal of the previously recognized impairment loss.

Actuarial Policies

Actuarial liabilities (reserves for life policy and members' equity) are computed by the Consulting Actuary of the
Association using actuarial practices generally accepted in the Philippines. Actuarial liabilities and other policy

liabilities represent the estimated amounts which, together with estimated future premiums and net investment
income, will provide for outstanding claims, estimated future benefits, and expenses on in-force policies.

In calculating actuarial liabilties, assumptions must be made about the timing and amount of many events,
including death, investment, inflation, policy termination, expenses, taxes, premiums and commissions. The
Association uses best estimate assumptions for expected future experience. Uncertainty is inherent in the
process, as no one can accurately predict the future. Some assumptions relate to events that are anticipated to
occur many years in the future and are likely to require subsequent revision.

Additional provisions are included in the actuarial liabilities to provide for possible adverse deviations from the
best estimates. If the assumption is more susceptible to change or if the actuary is less certain about the
underlying best estimate assumption, a correspondingly larger provision is included in the actuarial liabilities. In
determining these provisions, the Association ensures: (a) when taken one at a time, the provision is
reasonable with respect to the underlying best estimate assumption, and the extent of uncertainty present in
making that assumption, and (b) in total, the cumulative effect of all provisions is reasonable with respect to the
total actuarial liabilities. With the passage of time and resulting reduction in estimation risk, the provisions are
released into income. The best estimate assumptions and margins for adverse deviations are reviewed annually
and revisions are made where deemed necessary and prudent.

Recording of Claims from Policyholders

Claims incurred comprise settlement and handling costs of paid and outstanding claims arising during the year
and adjustments to prior year claim provisions. Outstanding claims comprise claims incurred up to, but not paid,
at the end of the year, whether reported or not.

Revenue and Cost Recognition

The Association's revenue arises primarily from the premium contributions of members and secondarily from
investment-related transactions such as investment income, dividend income, interest income and other
sources of revenues. Management has determined that the revenue from premium contributions of members
are within the scope of PFRS 4 while the income from investments in financial instruments are within the scope
of PFRS 9. Income from other sources are within the scope of PFRS 15,

The Association recognizes revenue as follows:

(1) Premium Contributions
Revenue from insurance products is recognized under PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, which defines an
insurance contract as a ‘contract under which one party (the insurer) accepts significant insurance risk
from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified
uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder.' PFRS 4 tem porarily
exempts the Association from some requirements of other PFRSs until the efficacy of PFRS 17,

beginning January 1, 2023. (Per IC Circular Letter No. 218-69, dated December 28, 2018)

Under the provisions of PFRS 4, the Association recognizes premium contributions as earned when
collected with corresponding allocation as approved by the Insurance Commission (IC). The proportion
of the premiums collected pertaining to periods after reporting date is carried forward to subsequent
accounting periods as unearned premiums, so that earned premiums relate to risks carried during the
accounting period.
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The members’ gross premium contributions are allocated as follows:

— 50% goes to the reserve for members' equity, intended for members’ entitiements of equity
value upon payment of the first contribution to the Association, representing 50% of the total
membership dues collected;

— 35% goes to cover basic benefits of members;

- 5% goes to Guarantee Fund, and the remaining

—10% goes to general operations, to cover administrative costs.

The Association collects its premiums/contributions of mem bers through SEDP-Simbag sa Pag-
Asenso, Inc, an affiliate, with a certain commission (collection cost).

Investment Income

Income from investments are accounted for under PFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Income from
investments in debt equities held to collect contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument
prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair value changes) are recognized at amortized cost, with
interest income recognized at the effective interest rate.

Non-Insurance Revenues

The Association recognizes non-insurance revenues in accordance with PFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Association is
expected to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

For each contract with a customer, the Association:

(1) Identifies the contract with a customer;

(2) Identifies the performance obligations in the contract;

(3) Determines the transaction price which takes into account estimates of variable consideration
and the time value of money;

Allocates the transaction price to the separate performance obligations on the basis of the
relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be delivered; and

(5) Recognizes revenue when or as each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that
depicts the transfer to the customer of the goods or services promised.

=

(4

Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the
customer such as discounts, rebates and refunds, any potential bonuses receivable from the customer
and any other contingent events. Such estimates are determined using either the 'expected value' or
‘most likely amount' method. The measurement of variable consideration is subject to a constraining
principle whereby revenue will only be recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The measurement
constraint continues until the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. Amounts received that are subject to the constraining principle are initially recognized as
deferred revenue in the form of a separate refund liability.

Cost and Expenses

Costs and expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when a decrease in future
economic benefits related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen which can
be measured reliably. Costs and expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss : i) on the
basis of a direct association between the cost incurred and the earnings of specific items of income; ii)
on the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to
arise over several accounting periods and the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly
determined; or iii) immediately when an expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when,
and to the extent that, future economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the
statement of financial position as an asset.
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Insurance-related costs are accounted as follows:

—  Changes in the required actuarial and other reserves are recognized as expense during the
period.

—  Plan benefits and claims paid to members, including refund of members’ equity value, are
recognized for benefits availed of by members/beneficiaries.

- Collection costs (representing commissions to collecting affiliate) are due and payable for
every premium income recognized. Commission rates are based on IC-approved rates.

(5) Grants and Donations
Grants and donations received are valued at fair market value at the time the grants are received.

Compensation and Employees Benefits Expense

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the Association in exchange for services rendered by
employees or for the termination of their employments in the Association. The Association recognizes: (a) a
liability when an employee has provided service in exchange for employee benefits to be paid in the future; and
(b) an expense when the Association consumes the economic benefit arising from the service provided by an
employee in exchange for employee benefits.

The following represent the accounting followed by the Association for all types of employee benefits, except
share-based payment, to which there is none.

o Short-Term Employee Benelfits
Short-term employee benefits are those expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period during which employee services are rendered, but do not include
termination benefits. These benefits include wages, salaries and bonuses (if there are any) and non-
monetary benefits paid to current employees. These are recognized when the employee has rendered
the service and are measured at the undiscounted amount of benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for that service.

The benefits also include compensated absences which are recognized for the number of paid leave
days (including holiday entitlement) remaining at the reporting date. The expected cost of short-term
compensated absences is recognized as the employees render service that increases their entitlement
or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absences occur, and includes any additional
amounts the Association expects to pay as a result of unused entitiements at end of period. The amounts
recognized are included in Trade and Other Payables account in the statement of financial position at
undiscounted amount that the Association expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

e Post-Employment Benefit Plans
Post-employment benefit plans that are provided to employees only cover their retirement benefits,
which are paid in lump sum payments at the time of their retirements. The retirement benefits are
provided to employees through a defined benefit plan. A defined benefit plan is a retirement plan that
defines an amount of retirement benefit an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on
one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal obligation for the benefits of
the retirement plan remains with the Association, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit
plan have been acquired. Plan assets may include assets specifically designated to a long-term benefit
fund, as well as qualifying insurance policies. The Association's defined benefit retirement plan covers
all regular full-time employees.

The Association has less than ten (10) regular employees and opted to accrue its retirement benefit
obligation using the provisions of the R. A. 7641, An Act Amending Article 287 of Presidential Decree
No. 442, as Amended, Otherwise Known as the Labor Code of the Philippines, by Providing for
Retirement Pay to Qualified Private Sector Employees in the Absence of any Retirement Plan in the
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Establishment. Accrual approach is applied by calculating the expected liability as at reporting date using
the employees' current compensation and number of years in service. Under this simplified method, the
Corporation ignores estimated future salary increases, future service of current employees and possible
in-service mortality of current employees between reporting date and date the employees are expected to
retire. The Association considers its retirement benefit obligations at this time as immaterial when
considered to its overall liabilities.

o Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Association before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Association recognizes termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: (a)
terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility
of withdrawal; or (b) providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the statement of financial position date are
discounted to present value.

Leases
The Association has applied PFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the com parative
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under PAS/IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

Policy Applicable from January 1, 2019

Atinception of a contract, the Association assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Association uses the definition of a lease in PFRS 16. This policy is applied to contracts entered into,
on or after 1 January 2019.

Leases - The Association as Lessee

The Association assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Association
recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which
itis the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases
of low value assets. For these low value leases, the Association recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The Association's leases substantially involve low-value assets and are generally having terms of one year or less.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Association uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

+ Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable:

* Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at
the commencement date;

* The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

+ The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

+ Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to
terminate the lease.
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The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position. The lease liability is
subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Association remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use asset) whenever:

+ The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a
change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

+ The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due
to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

* Alease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in
which case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Association did not make any such adjustments during the period presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments
made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Association incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the
site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, a provision is recognized and measured under PAS/IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a
right-of-use asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the
Association expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful
life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.

The Association applies PAS/IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Fumniture, Fixtures and Office Equipment’ policy.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and
the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line “Rent” in the statement of profit or loss.

As a practical expedient, PFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease com ponents, and instead
account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Association has not
used this practical expedient. For contracts that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Association allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on
the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.
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Leases - The Association as Lessor

Leases for which the Association is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Association is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sub-lease as two
separate contracts. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the amount of the
Association's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Association's net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases. When a contract includes both lease and non-lease components, the Association applies PFRS 15 to
allocate the consideration under the contract to each component. The Association is not a lessor of properties.

Policy Applicable Before January 1, 2019

For contracts entered into before 1 January 2019, the Association determined whether an arrangement is, or
contains a lease based on the substance of the arrangements. It makes an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys the right to use the asset. The Association is a lessee of an office space it uses as its Head Office. The
Association accounts for this lease as follows:

- Leases which transfer to the Association substantially all risks and benefits incidental to ownership of
the leased item are classified as finance leases and are recognized as assets and liabilities in the
statements of financial position at amounts equal at the inception of the lease to the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the leased liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are directly charged
against income. Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life
of the asset or the lease term.

—  Leases which do not transfer to the Association substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in
the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The existing leases of all
branch offices are treated as operating leases.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions, if any, are recognized when the Association has legal or constructive obligations as a result of a past
event: itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and estimate can be made
of the amount obligation. Provisions are recognized when present obligation will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the outflow may still be
uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive commitment that has resulted
from past events. Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at the statement of financial condition date, including the risks and
uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Any reimbursement expected to be received in the course of
settlement of the present obligation is recognized, if virtually certain as a separate asset, not exceeding the
amount of related provision. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial condition date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate. In those cases where the possible outflow of the economic resources as a result
of present obligation is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be measured
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reliably, no liability is recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Probable inflows of economic benefits
that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of the asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not
recognized in the financial statements. No contingent liabilities have been incurred during the year.

Events After Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Association’s position at the reporting date
(adjusting events), are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events
are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Note 3
Significant Critical Accounting Judgment and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In applying the Association's accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, the management of the Association are required to make judgements (other than those
involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts recognized and to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical Judgements in Applying the Association's Accounting Policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are presented separately
below), that the management of the Association have made in the process of applying the accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPP! and the business model
tests. The Association determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured,
the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the
assets are compensated.

The Association monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income that are derecognized prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal
and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.
Monitoring is part of the Association’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the
remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has
been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. No such
changes were required during the periods presented.

Significant Increase in Credit Risk

Expected credit losses (ECL) are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or
lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. PFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Association takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The key assumptions concemning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
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liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Fair Value Measurements

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active
market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on
observable data as far as possible; but this is not always available. In that case, management uses the best
information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s
length transaction at the reporting date.

Estimating Useful Lives of Furniture, Fixtures and Office E quipment

The Association reviews annually the estimated useful lives of its furniture, fixtures and office equipment based
on expected asset utilization. It is possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by
changes in these estimates. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of these properties would increase
recorded depreciation and amortization expense and decrease the related asset accounts.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Association assesses the impairment of its non-financial assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is
recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's net selling price and the value in use. The net selling price is the amount obtainable from
the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction while value in use is the present value of estimated future cash
flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its usefu! life.
Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

For impairment loss on specific asset, the recoverable amount represents the net selling price. In determining the
present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use of the assets, the
Association is required to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the Association's financial
statements.

Retirement Benefits

The determination of the Association's obligation and cost for pension and other employee benefits is dependent
on the selection of certain assumptions used by management in calculating such amounts. While the Association
believes that the assumptions used are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the actual
experience or significant changes in assumptions may materially affect employee benefit obligations.

Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies. Policies on
recognition and disclosure of provision and disclosure of contingencies are discussed in Note 2.

Note 4
Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account is composed of the following:

December 31, 2019 2018
Cash in banks P33,005,584 R11,872,841
Cash equivalents - unrestricted 16,064,717 2,098,384
Revolving fund 30,000 30,000
Cash equivalents - restricted - 26,000,000

P49,100,301 R40,001,225
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Cash in banks and cash equivalents earn interest at the prevailing market rates. The effective interest rate on

cash in banks and cash equivalents ranges from 0.10% to 6%,
income earned from cash in banks and cash equivalents amou

maturing in 90 days to 365 days. Total interest
nted B225,457 in 2019 and P65,658 in 2018.

The cash equivalents - restricted reported in 2018 is in compliance to the Guaranty Fund requirement by the
Insurance Commission lo be maintained by the Assaciation (See Note 12). This account consists of long-term
time deposits with terms ranging from 3 to 5 years and was reclassified accordingly in 2019 to investments in

debt securities (See Note 8),

Note 5
Trade and Other Receivables

This account consists of the following:

December 31, 2019 2018
Accounts receivable from SEDP-Simbag sa Pag-asenso, Inc. 20,000,000 R20,000,000
Accrued interest income 563,703 663,925
Advances to officers and employees 8,130 3,854
Other receivables 85,125 31,000
Total 20,656,958 20,698,779
Less allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) 103,494 103,494
Net 20,553,464 20,595,285
Less presented under current portion 553,464 595,285
Presented under non-current portion P20,000,000 R20,000,000

The accounts receivable from SEDP-Simbag sa Pag-asenso, Inc.
Microfinance NGO on December 17, 2018 and is collectible over
This accounts receivable has been secured with post-dated chec

Insurance Commission (IC).

By Age of the Accounts in 2019

represents the funds borrowed by the
a period of five (5) years at 6% per annum.

ks. The transaction was duly approved by the

December 31, 2019 Current Non-Current Total
Accounts receivable from SEDP, Inc, P- B20,000,000 P20,000,000
Accrued interest income 563,703 - 563,703
Advances lo officers and employees 8,130 8,130
Other receivables 85,125 — 85,125

B656,958 R20,000,000 P20,656,958

Management believes the remaining receivables were not impaired at the end of the year.

Allowance for ECL

The receivables are provided with 12-month ECL at 1% of principal for current 30 days and 34% for past due
less than one year. Accounts past due for over 1 year have been provided with lifetime ECL at 100%. No ECL
of was provided during the year as the existing allowance already covers the required ECL. P103,494 was

expensed during 2018,

Note 6
Other Assets

This account consists of unused certificates of insurance. Management believes that these assets were not

impaired at the end of the year.
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Note 7
Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipment - Net

This consists of the following items which are recorded in the books at costs.

December 31, 2019 2018
IT equipment P563,959 B563,959
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 169,117 169,117
733,076 733,076
Less accumulated depreciation 706,862 654,775
P26,214 R78,301

The Association enjoys free use of the building facilities of the Roman Catholic Bishop of Legaspi, Inc. It shares
on the costs of monthly utilities of the building.

Reconciliation of the Movements of the Accounts

December 31, 2019 Opening Balances Additions Relirement _ Closing Balances
Cost

IT equipment R563,959 P- B- P563,959
Fumniture, fixtures and office eqpmnt 169,117 - - 169,117
Total 733,076 - B 733,076
Less accumulated depreciation

IT equipment 485,658 52,087 - 537,745
Furniture, fixtures and office eqpmnt 169,117 - - 169,117
Total 654,775 52,087 - 706,862
Net Book Value P78,301 (R52,087) P— P26,214
December 31, 2018

Cost

IT equipment P552,259 R11,700 P- P563,959
Furniture, fixtures and office eqpmnt 169,117 - - 169,117
Total 721,376 11,700 - 733,076
Less accumulated depreciation

IT equipment 429,660 55,998 - 485,658
Fumniture, fixtures and office eqpmnt 169,117 - - 169,117
Total 598,777 55,998 - 654,775
Net Book Value P122,599 (P44,298) B- P78,301
Note 8

Investments in Debt and Equity Securities

This account consists of the following investments in:

December 31, 2019 2018
Investments in debt securities at AC P181,938,124 R178,579,465
Investments in equity securities at FVTPL 373,644 -
Investments in equity securities at FVTOCI 19,307,685

P201,619,453 R178,579,465
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The Association earned interest income from the investments am

2018.

Investment in Debt Securities Accounted at Amortized Cost (AC)

These investments were acquired through the following banks:

ounting B7,783,720 in 2019 and P5,395,456 in

December 31, 2019 2018

Treasury Bills

Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company (MBTC) P8,222,008 R7,963,154

Retail Treasury Bonds

Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company (MBTC) 34,893,150 34,872,202

Banco de Oro (BDO) 22,844,145 22,804,049

Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI) 20,042,890 38,022,176

Security Bank 9,935,931 9,917,884

Philippine National Bank (PNB) 8,000,000 5,000,000
95,716,116 110,616,311

Corporate Bonds

Philippine National Bank (PNB) 33,000,000 41,000,000

Rizal Commercial & Banking Corporation (RCBC) 5,000,000 5,000,000
38,000,000 46,000,000

LTNCDs

Banco de Oro (BDO) 9,000,000 9,000,000

Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company (MBTC) 5,000,000 5,000,000
14,000,000 14,000,000

Long-Term Time Deposits - Restricted

Philippine National Bank (PNB) 16,000,000 -

Rizal Commercial & Banking Corporation (RCBC) 10,000,000 -
26,000,000 -

P181,938,124 R178,579,465

Treasury Bills

The treasury bills represent short-term, zero-coupon investments in quoted government debt securities which

are issued at a discount on its face value, The treasu

Company (MBTC) will mature on July 22, 2020.

The rollforward analysis of this account is as follows: (Please see table next page.)

ry bills purchased through Metropolitan Bank and Trust

December 31, 2019 2018
Face value P8,570,000 R8,000,000
Net discount 347,992 36,846
Carrying Amount P8,222,008 R7,963,154

Retail Treasury Bonds

These are investments in quoted government debt securities with the following features:

a) The retail treasury bonds purchased through Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company (MBTC) have
coupon rates at 3.25% and 4.625% that will mature on the following dates: March 20, 2021, December

4, 2022, and August 15, 2023.

b)  The retail treasury bonds purchased through Banco de Oro (BDO) have coupon rates at 3.25% and
4.25% that will mature on the following dates: April 11, 2020, August 15, 2023, and September 20, 2026.
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c) The retail treasury bonds purchased through Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI) have coupon rates at
3.25% and 6.00% that will mature on August 15, 2023 and March 22, 2028, respectively.

d) The retail treasury bond purchased through Security Bank have a coupon rate at 3.25% that will
mature on August 15, 2023.

e) The retail treasury bonds purchased through Philippine National Bank (PNB) have coupon rates at
3.25% and 6.25% that will mature on August 15, 2023 and March 12, 2024, respectively.

The roliforward analysis of the retail treasury bonds purchased through LBP is as follows:

December 31, 2019 2018

Face value P96,000,000 £93,000,000

Net discount (premium) 283,884 (17,616,311)
Carrying Amount P95,716,116 R110,616,311

Corporate Bonds

Corporate bonds are debt securities issued by publicly held corporations to raise money for expansion or other
business needs. The interest coupons of corporate bonds are either paid quarterly or semi-annually with rates
ranging from 3.8915% to 6.75%, maturing in 5 years to 10 years from issuance.

LTNCDs

Long-Term Negotiable Certificate of Deposits (LTNCDs) are offered by banks to investors looking for a
relatively safe investment, but with higher interest rates than regular savings accounts or short-term time
deposits. LTNCDs can be sold in the secondary market, even before maturity date. The interest coupons of
LTNCDs are paid quarterly with rates ranging from 3.75% to 3.875%, maturing in 5 years to 7 years from
issuance.

Long-Term Time Deposits - Restricted

The long-term time deposits — restricted reported is in compliance to the Guaranty Fund requirement by the
Insurance Commission to be maintained by the Association (See Note 12). The effective interest rate on these
deposits ranges from 4.125% to 6%, maturing in 3 years to 5 years from issuance.

Investment in Equity Securities Accounted at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

This is an investment in the Mutual Security Fund managed by Union Bank of the Philippines' Trust and
Investment Services Group. The Association earms dividends from these investments and when there is
significant and apparently permanent decline in value of the investment, as indicated by prolonged losses of the
investee (and other factors), the carrying amount of the investments are written down to fair value.

Investment in Equity Securities Accounted at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

This consists of Unit Investment Trust Fund (UITF) investment in BPI's Bayanihan Balanced Fund, initially
purchased at P18,000,000, and the fair value of the investment at the end of 2019 amounted R19,307,685. The
increase in value of the investment, amounting 1,307,685, was recorded in the other comprehensive income
for the year.

Note 9
Trade and Other Payables

Accounts payable to SEDP MPC, Inc. represents the excess of the budgeted benefits to 283 members who had
reached the age 66 years old (R5,000 per member) accrued at the end of 2018. The total members' benefits
amounting 1,415,000 has been turned over to the SEDP Foundation, Inc. in 2019 and has been distributed to
the corresponding members.
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Accrued expenses represents the accrued collection costs subsequently paid in January 2020. Total collection
costs paid to SEDP - Simbag sa Pag-asenso, Inc. amounted P5,490,951 in 2019 and 4,919,345 in 2018.

This details of the accounts are the following:

December 31, 2019 2018
Accrued expenses P5,476,202 R4,864,232
Retirement benefit obligations 804,141 708,548
Accounts payable to SEDP MPC, Inc. 210,000 210,000
Savings fund of employees 194,656 197,859
Accounts payable for surrendered membership 19,640 30,350
Accounts payable - others 1,168,430 676,819

P7,873,069 6,687,808

Retirement Benefit Obligations

The Association’s four (4) regular/permanent employees at the end of 2019 are provided with retirement benefits
beginning 2010, based on the 67% of the entitled employees' gross salaries plus one-twelfth (1/12) of their 13th
month pay. The policy defines the amount of retirement benefit an employee will receive at the time of retirement
or separation from service. The legal obligation on the payment of the retirement benefits to the employees
remains with the Association. Total pension expenses charged to operations amounted to R304,356 in 2019 and
R472,521in 2018.

Note 10

Insurance Contract Liabilities

This consists of the following:

December 31, 2019 2018
Claims incurred but not reported P658,189 R1,774,594
Claims in the course of settlement 127,000 -

P785,189 B1,774,594

Incurred but not reported claims are claims reported beyond the reporting date whose date of claim happened
three months before the reporting date. For 2019, claims reported in the months of November 2019, December
2019 and January 2020 whose date of death/claim is before November 1,2019, are included in this category.

Claims in the course of settlement are claims reported and unpaid at the end of the year pending submission
of documentary requirements. No decision has yet been made whether to deny or to pay the claim.

The amounts recorded as insurance contract liabilities were certified by the Association's Actuary to be in
accordance with sound actuarial principles.

Total basic benefits and claims paid to members amounted R27,694,781 in 2019 and 25,452,905 in 2018.

Note 11

Aggregate Reserves for Unexpired Risks

The aggregate policy reserves represent the amount which is considered adequate to cover future guaranteed
benefits as they become payable under the provisions of the policies in force. The reserve is the aggregate
value of future guaranteed benefits less the present value of future net premiums.
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This following consist the details of the reserves:

December 31, 2019 2018
Aggregates reserves for members’ equity P150,699,862 R127,362,078
Aggregates reserves for credit policies 2,691,139 2,478,910
Aggregates reserves for life policies 726,879 627,844

P154,117,880 R130,468,832

The movements of the reserves during the year are as follows:

Reserves for  Reserves for Credit Reserves for

December 31, 2019 Members' Equity Policies Life Policies Total
Provisions during 2014 P65,986,915 P2,351,536 P1,206,266 P69,544,717
Provisions during 2015 13,243,621 (615,593) (812,754) 11,815,274
Provisions during 2016 14,554,323 171,844 (225,963) 14,500,204
Provisions during 2017 14,722,450 219,929 91,466 15,033,845
Provisions during 2018 18,854,769 351,194 368,829 19,574,792
127,362,078 2,478,910 627,844 130,468,832

Provisions during 2019 23,337,784 212,229 99,035 23,649,048
P150,699,862 P2,691,139 R726,879  P154,117,880

In accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Code, every outstanding membership certificate must have,
after three (3) full years of being continuously in force, an equity value to at least 50% of the total membership
dues collected from the member less claims paid. The equity is payable to the members upon termination of their
membership in the Association. In accordance with the same Code, the Association is required to put up a reserve
liability not lower than the equity value of all in-force, active certificates as at the end of each calendar year; hence,
the Association sets up the 50% of its gross premium collections as its reserves for members’ equity.

The reserve for credit life insurance represents the amount which is considered adequate to cover future
guaranteed benefits on a debtor pursuant to or in connection with his/her specific loans and other credit
transactions with the members of the Association.

The reserve for life policies represents the amount which is considered adequate to cover future guaranteed
benefits as they become payable under the provisions of the policies in force. The reserve is the aggregate
value of future guaranteed benefits less the present value of future net premiums.

The amount of aggregate reserves for members’ equity, reserves for credit policies, reserves for life policies and
reserves for golden life policies for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, have been computed and
certified by the Consulting Actuary of the Association to be in accordance with commonly accepted actuarial
standards consistently applied and that the legal policy reserves and other actuarial items are fairly stated in
accordance with sound actuarial principles.

Note 12
Guaranty Fund

This represents the amount required by the Insurance Commission (IC) to be established to guaranty the
benefits and security of policyholders and creditors of the Association, in accordance with the provisions of the
Insurance Code, deposited in a local depository bank. (See Note 8.) The Fund is increased by the 5%
contributions from members.

The Guaranty Fund is funded by investments in debt securities, (See Note 8.) which are assigned to the
Insurance Commission (IC).
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Accounting of Guaranty Fund

December 31, 2019 2018
Opening balances P24,319,679 R20,982,320
Members contribution during the year 3,896,370 3,337,359
Closing balances P28,216,049 P24,319,679

Note 13
Special Funds

In accordance with the recommendations of the Insurance Commission, the Association's Board of Trustees

approved appropriations of the following special funds from the General Fund:

December 31, 2019 2018
Members' Benefits Fund P20,551,751 P26,488,244
Capacity Building Fund 8,515,803 6,938,331
Members' Education Fund 8,284,889 6,468,680
Research and Development Fund 5,368,393 4,895,152
Acquisition of Systems and Equipment 3,798,483 3,482,988
P46,519,319 P48,273,395
The movements of the appropriated funds during 2019 and 2018, as follows:
Allocations
December 31, 2019 Opening Balances of Net Surplus Disbursements __ Closing Balances
Members' Benefits Fund (70%) P26,488,244 R11,042,307 B16,978,800 P20,551,751
Capacity Building Fund (3%) 6,938,331 1,577,472 - 8,515,803
Members' Education Fund (10%) 6,468,680 2,366,209 550,000 8,284,889
Research and Dev't. (2%) 4,895,152 473,242 5,368,394
Acquisition of Sys & Equip (15%) 3,482,988 315,494 - 3,798,482
P48,273,395 R15,774,724 B17,528,800 P46,519,319
December 31, 2018
Members' Benefits Fund (70%) R22,109,012 28,934,427 P4,555,195 P26,488,244
Capacity Building Fund (3%) 5,947,698 990,633 - 6,938,331
Members' Education Fund (10%) 5,582,731 1,485,949 550,000 6,468,680
Research and Dev't. (2%) 4,597,962 297,190 - 4,895,152
Acquisition of Sys & Equip (15%) 3,284,862 198,126 - 3,482,988
R41,472,265 R11,906,325 R5,105,195 P48,273,395

The appropriated funds are funded by the cash and cash equivalents of the Association. The disbursements of

special funds are considered as benefits paid to members.

Note 14
General Fund

This represents portion of the fund balance that is not restricted. Accordin

g to Section 408, paragraph 3 of the

Insurance Code, as amended (R.A. No. 10607), a mutual benefit association shall only maintain free and
unassigned surplus of not more than twenty percent (20%) of its total liabilities. Any amount in excess shall be
returned to the members by way of dividends, enhancing the equity value or providing benefits in kind and other

relevant services. In addition, subject to the approval of the Commission
allocate a portion for capacity building and research and develol
systems and equipment, and continuing member education.

er, a mutual benefit association may
pment, upgrading and improving operating
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The Association allocated the excess of twenty percent (20%) of the total liabilities amounting 15,774,724 in
2019 and P11,906,325 in 2018 to special funds.

Note 15
Members' Premium Contributions

The Association's members are charged twenty pesos (P20.00) per week, during their active membership in the
Association. In accordance with its Rules and Regulations approved by the Insurance Commission (IC), the
Association allocates the contributions as follows:

a) 50%is allocated as reserve for members' equity intended for the members' entitiements of equity value;

b) 35% is intended to cover basic benefits such as payments for death or permanent disability claims of a
member or its legal spouse below sixty-six (66) years old; or four (4) single, biological and/or legally
adopted children who are two weeks old but not more than twenty-one (21) years old single, disabled
and incapacitated to work. If single without children, the members’ legal dependents include the
member’s biological parents not more than 65 years. If a member's parents are both deceased upon
membership, the member can declare two (2) eldest siblings, at least two (2) weeks old but not more
than twenty-one (21) years old;

¢) 5% is intended as additional guaranty fund; and
d) 10% is intended to cover administrative costs and expenses.

Every outstanding membership certificate must have, after three (3) ful years of being continuously in force, an
equity value to at least 50% of the total membership dues collected from the member less claims paid. The
equity is payable to the members upon termination of their membership in the Association.

Every year, a number of members withdrew their equity from the Association. During 2019 and 2018, the total
value of equity withdrawn amounted 8,709,386 and P8,814,632, respectively. The withdrawal of equity is
treated as part of the benefits paid to members.

Gross premiums on credit life insurance plan are income from loans on member which are deducted upfront in
the payment of the loan. The amount of contribution is based on the principal amount and term of loans.

Membership Fees

The members are also charged with one-time membership fee of 150, which is non-refundable and does not
form part of the members' accumulated and refundable contributions. The amount is treated as income to
finance part of the requirements for general and administrative expenses not covered by the 10% allocation
from gross premium contributions. Gross premiums on credit life insurance are income from loans on member's
which are included in the monthly payments of the loans. The amount of contribution is based on the principal
amount and term of loans. Total membership fees collected amounted 2,518,223 in 2019 and P2,392,228 in
2018.

Note 16

Details of Compensation and Employees’ Benefits

Years Ended December 31, 2019 2018

Short-term employees' benefits P1,866,022 R1,510,733
Post-employment benefits 304,356 472,521
P2,170,378 P1,983,254
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Note 17
Details of General and Administrative Expenses
Years Ended December 31 2019 2018
Meetings and seminars P879,830 R783,933
Professional fees 506,710 90,860
Association dues 279,388 289,112
Repairs and maintenance 255,102 105,000
General assembly expenses 192,930 299,742
Supplies and materials 176,463 190,748
Taxes and licenses (Note 23) 111,245 202,590
Transportation and travel 56,352 67,652
Insurance 43,463 45,482
Communication 33,481 32,243
Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) (Note 5) - 103,494
Miscellaneous expenses 17,151 45,225
P2,552,115 B2,256,081
Note 18

Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of trade or business, the Association has transactions with its related parties which
include its Board of Trustees, members of various committees and its officers and employees, who are also
members of the Association. These transactions are made substantially on the same terms and conditions as
with other members of comparable risks. None of the transactions incorporate special terms and conditions and
no guarantee is given or received. Outstanding balances are usually settled in cash.

Among these related transactions are the following:
(a) The Association accepts insurance business from the borrowers of SEDP-Simbag sa Pag-Asenso, Inc.
and authorizes the institution to collect premium contributions from these members for certain

commissions. Total collection costs incurred amounted B5,490,951 in 2019 and P4,919,345 in 2018.

(b) SEDP - Simbag sa Pag-Asenso, Inc. obtained an unsecured, interest-bearing loan from the
Association amounting B20 million in 2018, (See Note 5.)

(c) The Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Association is also a member of the Board of Trustees
of SEDP-Simbag sa Pag-Asenso, Inc.

(d) The Association is enjoying free use of the facilities of the Catholic Church in Legaspi City, Albay
although it shares the cost of utilities.

(e) The key management compensation follows:

Years Ended December 31 2019 2018
Short-term employee benefits P516,039 P426,061
Post-employment benefits 30,299 23,832

P546,338 449,893
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Note 19
Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments Measured at Amortized Cost for which Fair Value is Disclosed
The following table summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Association’s financial assets and liabilities which
are not measured at fair value in the 2019 statement of financial condition but for which fair value is disclosed.

December 31, 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) P49,100,301 R- P- P49,100,301
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) - - 20,553,464 20,553,464
Inv. in debt & equity securities (Note 8) 201,619,453 - - 201,619,453
P250,719,754 R—  P20,553,464 P271,273,218
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (Note 9) B- R- R7,873,069 P7,873,069
Insurance contract liabilities (Note 10) - - 785,189 785,189
Aggregate reserves for risks (Note 71) - - 154,117,880 154,117,880
B- P-  P162,776,138  P162,776,138
December 31, 2018
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) R40,001,225 R- B-  P40,001,225
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) - - 20,595,285 20,595,285
Inv. in debt & equity securities (Note 8) 178,579,465 - - 178,579,465
P218,580,690 P—  P20,595285 P239,175,975
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (Note 9) P- B- 6,687,808 P6,687,808
Insurance contract liabilities (Note 10) - - 1,774,594 1,774,594
Aggregate reserves for risks (Note 71) - B 130,468,832 130,468,832
P P- P138,931,234 P138,931,234

For financial assets and financial liabilities with fair values included in Level 1, management considers that the
carrying amounts of those short-term financial instruments equal their fair values. The fair values of the financial
assets and financial liabilities included in Level 3 above which are not traded in an active market is determined
by using generally acceptable pricing models and valuation techniques or by reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same after taking into account the related credit risk of
counter-parties, or is calculated based on the expected cash flows of the underlying net asset base of the
instrument. When the association uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of observable market data
where itis available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
determine the fair value of an instrument are observable, the instrument iis included in Level 2, Otherwise, it is
included in Level 3.

Fair Value Measurement for Non-Financial Assets
The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of non-financial assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

December 31, 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Other assets (Note 6) R- P- B74,987 P74,987
Furniture, fixt & office equip - net (vote 7) - - 26,214 26,214

B- P R101,201 P101,201
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December 31, 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Other assets (Note 6) P- P- R56,279 P56,279
Furniture, fixt & office equip - net (Note 7) - - 78,301 78,301

P— P- P134,580 P134,580

The Level 3 fair value of the buildings and improvements included under the Property and Equipment account
was determined using the cost approach that reflects the cost to a market participant to construct an asset of
comparable usage, construction standards, design and layout, adjusted for obsolescence. The more significant
inputs used in the valuation include direct and indirect costs of construction such as but not limited to, labor and
contractor's profit, materials and equipment, surveying and permit costs, electricity and utility costs, architectural
and engineering fees, insurance and legal fees. These inputs were derived from various suppliers and
contractor's quotes, price catalogues, and construction price indices. Under this approach, higher estimated
costs used in the valuation will result in higher fair value of the properties.

Note 20
Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Association maintains a certain level of capital to ensure sufficient solvency margins and to adequately
protect its members. The level of capital maintained is always aimed to be higher than the minimum capital
requirements of the IC. The Association considers the entire equity in determining the capital.

The Association maintains a certain level of capital to ensure sufficient solvency margins and to adequately
protect its members. The Association's Board of Trustees reviews regularly its capital structure and considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Management regularly monitors the
capital requirements of the Association, taking account of future balance sheet growth, profitability, and any
anticipated regulatory changes, in order to ensure that the Association is at all times able to meet the forecast
future minimum capital requirements. The Association's overall strategy remains unchanged from the past year.

Compliance with Capitalization Requirements

In accordance with the provisions of Chapter VII, Title 1, Section 405 of R.A. 10607, The Amended Insurance
Code, a mutual benefit association incorporated after the effectivity of the Code shall constitute and establish a
Guaranty Fund with initial amount of B5 million, in cash or in government securities, to answer for any valid
benefit claim of any of its members. The Association has complied with this requirement by having established
its Guaranty Fund of 28,216,049 (See Note 12) and having funded it with investments in debt securities at the
end of 2019.

Note 21
Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Association is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The Association's principal
financial instruments are its cash and cash equivalents (Note 4), trade and other receivables (Note 5),
investments in debt and equity securities (Note 8), trade and other payables (Note 9), insurance contract
liabilities (Note 10) and aggregate reserves for unexpired risks (Note 11). The main types of risks are insurance
risk, credit and concentration risks, market risk and liquidity risk.

The Association is not exposed to foreign currency risk since it has no foreign currency deposits. In 2019, the
Association purchased financial instruments as part of its investment strategies. The Association is now
exposed to investment risks beginning 2019.

The objective of financial risk management is to contain, where appropriate, exposures in these financial risks
to limit any negative impact on the Association’s financial performance and financial position. The Association
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actively measures, monitors and manages its financial risk exposures by various functions pursuant to the

segregation of duties principle.

Risk Management Structure

The Board of Trustees is mainly responsible for the overall risk management and for the approval of risk
strategies and principles of the Association. The Board of Trustees also has the overall responsibility for the
development of risk strategies, principles, frameworks, policies and limits, It establishes a forum of discussion of

the Association’s approach to risk issues in order to make relevant decisions.

Insurance Risk

The principal risk the Association faces under insurance contracts is the risk that the actual claims and benefit
payments exceed the carrying amount of recognized insurance liabilities. This situation is influenced by the
frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid are greater than originally estimated and subsequent
development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Association is to ensure that sufficient reserves
are available to cover these liabilities. The amount of reserves set-up in the books is computed by the Actuarial

Consultant and monitored on a regular basis.

Credit and Concentration Risks/Investment Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default and/or not honor its financial or contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Association. The Association is exposed to credit risk from financial assets
including its cash held in banks, receivables from agents and others and investments in financial instruments.

The credit risk in respect of cash balances held with banks and time deposits with banks are managed via
diversification of bank deposits and are only with major reputable financial institutions and are regularly
monitored. Trade receivables consist of premiums receivable from active members and from the unremitted
premium collections by the agent-affiliate. The Association does not hold any security on the receivables from
agents and others balance and the accounts are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the

Association’s exposure to impairment is not significant.

The investment risk related to investments in financial instruments represents the exposure to loss resulting
from cash flows from invested assets being less than the cash flows required to meet the obligations of the
expected policy and contract liabilities and the necessary return on investments. To maintain an adequate yield
to match the interest necessary to support future policy liabilities, the Board of Trustees is investing only on
Government financial instruments which are fairly safe investments.

The Association deals only with creditworthy counterparties duly approved by the Board of Trustees. Its
maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statements of financial position is the carrying

amounts as shown in the following table:

Neither Past Due

Past Due But

December 31, 2019 Nor Impaired Not Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) P49,100,301 P- P49,100,301
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) 553,464 - 553,464
Inv. in debt & equity securities (Note 8) 201,619,453 - 201,619,453
R251,273,218 B-  P251,273,218
100% 0.00% 100%

December 31, 2018
Cash and cash equivalents (ote 4) B40,001,225 P- P40,001,225
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) 595,285 - 595,285
Inv. in debt & equity securities (Note 8) 178,579,465 - 178,579,465
P219,175,975 B-  P219,175,975
100% 0.00% 100%
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Credit Quality by Class of Financial Assets Based on the Association's Rating System

December 31, 2019 High Grade Standard Grade Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) R49,100,301 P- P- P49,100,301
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) 553,464 - B 553,464
Inv. in debt & equity securities (Note 8) - 201,619,453 - 201,619,453
P49,653,765  R201,619,453 B~ P251,273,218
December 31, 2018
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) R40,001,225 P- P- R40,001,225
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) 595,285 - - 595,285
Inv. in debt & equity securities (Note 8) - 178,579,465 - 178,579,465
P40,596,510  R178,579,465 B-  P219,175,975

Financial instruments classified as "high grade" are those cash transacted with reputable local banks and
receivables with no history of default on the agreed contract terms. Financial instruments classified as “standard
grade” are those receivables from parties who need to be reminded of their duties. No financial assets were
deemed by management as impaired.

Market Risks

Market risk is the possibility that changes in equity prices or interest rates will adversely affect the value of the
Association's assets, liabilities or expected future cash flows. The Association has no exposure arising from
complex investments since it is not engaging in high risk investments, forward contracts, hedging, and the likes,
whether local or foreign transactions.

(a) Price risk.
The Association has no exposure to price risks as its investments in quoted equity and debt securities
are of fixed interest rates.

)

=

Interest rate risk.
The Association's interest rate risk arises from its time deposits with banks. The Association invested
in fixed rate deposits to mitigate the risks.

(c) Foreign currency exchange rate risk.

The Association is not exposed to foreign currency risks as it has no assets nor liabilities denominated
in foreign currency.

Liquidity Risks

Liquidity risk is that the Association might be unable to meet its obligations. The Association's objectives to
manage its liquidity profile are: (a) to ensure that adequate funding is available at all times: (b) to meet
commitments as they arise without incurring unnecessary costs: and (c) to be able to access funding when
needed at the least possible cost. The Association manages its liquidity by carefully monitoring its scheduled
servicing payments for financial liabilities as well as its cash flows due on its day-to-day business.

The data used for analyzing these cash flows is consistent with that used in the contractual maturity analysis in
the following table. Net cash requirements are compared to available cash position in order to determine
headroom or any shortfalls. This analysis shows that available cash position is expected to be sufficient over
the lookout period.

The Association considers its expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and managing liquidity
risk, in particular its cash resources and trade receivables. The Association's existing cash resources and trade
receivables significantly exceed the current cash outflow requirements. Cash flows from receivables from
agents and others are all contractually due within six months.
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Maturity Profile of the Assaciation’s Financial Liabilities

December 31, 2019 Due in One Year Due Over One Year Total
Trade and other payables (Note 9) B7,873,069 P- P7,873,069
Insurance contract liabilities (Note 10) 785,189 - 785,189
Aggregate reserves for unexpired risks (Note 17) - 154,117,880 154,117,880
P8,658,258  P154,117,880  P162,776,138
5.32% 94.68% 100.00%

Note 22

Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of its operations, the Association makes various commitments and incurs certain
contingent liabilities which are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. Management anticipates
no material losses, if any, that may arise from these commitments and contingencies.

Note 23
Events After Reporting Date - Onslaught of the Coronavirus Disease (2019)

The World Health Organization (WHO) declared the Coronavirus Disease (2019) (COVID-19) outbreak a
pandemic on March 11, 2020 to signify its severity and global coverage and urged countries to take ‘urgent and
aggressive action.’ The outbreak was first noticed in China and then in Europe (particularly Spain, Italy and
France) where multiple deaths by the thousands were reported. In the Philippines, there were already 25,392
total confirmed cases, 1,074 deaths, and 5,706 recoveries as of June 13, 2020.

As the pandemic began its spread throughout the world, several countries have taken a variety of measures
from mass testing, travel/border restrictions, to lockdowns in a bid to contain the virus. Governments and central
banks have likewise been adjusting their monetary and fiscal policies to mitigate the economic impact of the
pandemic. It is anticipated that the pandemic will translate into a world-wide economic crisis and may eventually
lead to social and political crisis.

Predicting the impact of COVID-19 pandemic in the Philippines is difficult to make at this time because much
will depend on the spread of the disease and whether the measures undertaken by the Government will
successfully contain its spread. Initial results of the month-long community quarantine (CQ) and the extended
community quarantine (ECQ) however indicated that, except for the National Capital Region (NCR), cities and
provinces have so far contained the spread of the virus in their areas. But a second wave of infection is
anticipated as had happened in China and Korea, and the Philippine Government may continue to impose CQs
or ECQs.

Under the present scenario, it is anticipated that the impact on the economy wil likely manifest in a sharp drop
in overall domestic consumer demand for nonessential goods and services. Demand for food, medical
assistance and other essential items is expected to rise, but this would not offset the lower demand for non-
essential goods such as apparel and various services. Remittances from overseas Filipino workers are
expected to slow down due to layoffs and delayed salary payments of Filipino OFWs especially in countries that
are also affected by COVID-19.

The National Economic and Development Authority (NEDA), in its March 19, 2020 report Addressing the Social
and Economic Impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic, estimated that the adverse impact of COVID-19 will be felt
by the country until June 2020, and that the simultaneous adverse effects on the supply and demand side of the
economy will result in the reduction of the Philippine’s real GDP growth to -0.06% to 4.3% in 2020, unless
mitigating measures are effectively implemented.
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Projecting the impact of COVID-19 on the operations of the Association is presently daunting and difficult.
Clearly, it is still too early to say how long will the infection last; whether there will be return waves; whether the
Government will continue to impose CQs or ECQs. Besides, this assessment was made at a time when all of
the Association's human resources were still in quarantine.

The Association anticipates that COVID-19 will impact on its revenue generation for 2020, both from premium
contributions from members and from revenue from investments in financial instruments. It will likewise impact
on the valuation of its financial assets and may even expose the Association to heightened credit and liquidity
risks as it is highly possible that there are COVID-19 fatalities from members. The Board of Trustees will
endeavor to quantify the full impact of COVID-19 on its overall operations as soon as it is able to return to full
operations.

The Board of Trustees has determined that the impact of COVID-19 will be felt in 2020 and that there have
been no adjustments necessary on its 2019 financial statements.

Note 24
Authorization of Financial Statements

The Association's financial statements as of December 31, 2019, and for the period then ended, were
authorized for issue by the Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees on June 14, 2020.

Note 25
Details of Taxes, Licenses and Fees

Inaccordance with the supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010, the
Association discloses the following:

Years Ended December 31 2019 2018
License renewal and filing fees P107,130 £198,990
Local taxes/fees (business permits, etc.) 3,615 3,100
BIR annual registration 500 500

P111,245 P202,590
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Annex | Effective Standards and Interpretations Under PFRS as of
December 31, 2019, Adopted Beginning January 1, 2019
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EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS UNDER PFRS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019, ADOPTED BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2019
Simbag sa Emerhensya Asin Dagdag Paseguro Mutual Benefit Association (SEDP MBA), Inc.

Effective as of December 31, 2019

Adopted

Adopted Applicable

Not Not

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and Qualitative Characteristics

Y
v

PFRSs Practice S 1t Management Commentary

N

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

PFRS 1 (Revised)
First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

Amendment: Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Joint Controlled Entity or Associate

Amendment: Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters

Amendment: Limited Exemption from Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters

Amendment: Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans

Amendments to PFRS 1:Annual Improvements 2009-2012 Cycle

Amendments to PFRS 1:Annual Improvements 2011-2013

Amendments to PFRS 1:Annual Improvements 2014-2016

B B P P PN PN P P P

PFRS 2
Share-based Payment

Amendment: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

Amendment: Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendment: Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

PFRS 3 (Revised)
Business Combinations

Amendment: Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment: Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Amendment: Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendment: Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3)

L P P P P < | <] 221

PFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts

Amendment to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 9 with PFRS 4.

PFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

Amendment to PFRS 5: Improvements to PFRSs 2014

<j<

PFRS 6
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclass of Financial Assets — Effective Date and Transition

Amendments: Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

Amendments: Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

Amendments: Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

Amendments: Additional disclosures and consequential amendments

Amendments: Improvements to IFRSs 2014

Amendments: Additional disclosures around uncertainty arising from interest rate benchmark reform

By B R B B P P P B P

PFRS 8
Operating Segments

PFRS 9
Financial Instruments (2014 version)

Amendments to PFRS 9:Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS9 and Transition Disclosures*

Amendment: Applying PFRS 9 with IFRS 4.

<2< 2
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Effective as of December 31, 2019

Adopted | Adopted Applicable

Not Not

Amendment: Prepayment Feature with Negative Compensation

N

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial S s

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27: Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor*

PFRS 11 (Amended)
Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations*

Amendment: Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27: Investment Entities
Amendments: Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
Amendments: Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle

Lol 2 <)< afals

PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to PFRS 13: Short-term Receivables and Payables
Amendments to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception

<2<

PFRS 14
Regulatory Deferral Accounts

PFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

PFRS 16
Leases

PFRS 17
Insurance Contracts*

PHILLIPINE (INTERNATIONAL) ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

PAS 1 (Revised)
Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment: Capital Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Fin. Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendments: Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Amendments: Disclosure Initiative

Amendments: Definition of Material

PAS 2
Inventories

PAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows
Amendment: Disclosure Initiative

PAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

< < < <. <f< )< <<

Amendments: Definition of Material

PAS 10
Events after the Reporting Period

PAS 12
Income Taxes

Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

Amendment: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses

Amendment: Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2015-2017

PAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment

Amendments: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization*

<< B B P P <

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Bearer Plants*

PAS 19 (Amended)
Employee Benefits

Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

Amendments to PAS 19: Discount Rate: Regional Market Issue

Amendments: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

LS B P A PN <

PAS 20

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance

N
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Not Not
Effective as of December 31, 2019 Adopted |Adopted |Applicable
PAS 21
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates v
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v
PAS 23 (Revised)
Borrowing Costs N
Amendments: Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017
PAS 24 (Revised)
Related Party Disclosures v
PAS 26
Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
PAS 28 (Amended)
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures N
Amendments: Sale or Contrib. of Assets Between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture v
Amendments to PAS 28, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception N
Amendments: Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
PAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
PAS 32
Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation v
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Fin. Instruments &Obligations Arising on Liquidation v
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues v
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities v
PAS 33
Earnings per Share v
PAS 34
Interim Financial Reporting V
Amendment: Improvements to IFRSs 2014 v
PAS 36
Impairment of Assets v
Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets v
PAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets v
PAS 38
Intangible Assets V
Amendments: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization® N
PAS 40
Investment Property v
Amendments: Transfers of Investment Property v
PAS 41
Agriculture N
Amendments to PAS 41: Bearer Plants vV
IFRIC 1
Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities v
IFRIC 2
Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar Instruments V
IFRIC 5
Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration &Environmental Rehabilitation Funds v
IFRIC 6
Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment v
IFRIC 7
Applying Restatement Approach under PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
IFRIC 9
R nent of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives N
IFRIC 10
Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v
IFRIC 12
Service Concession Arrangements v
IFRIC 14
PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Reqrmnts and their Interaction v
Amendment IFRIC - 14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement v
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May REKLAMO ka ba? s . &
TAWAG nal 7&@5

Bawat sumbong mo, aksyon agad!
TAWAG LANG PO O MAG TEXT SA MGA
SUMUSUNOD NA NUMERO :

# . COMPLAINT HOTLINE/
CUSTOMER CARE:

2nd District Albay plus
Sorsogon, Masbate,
Catarman:

GLOBE# e
09952753615
SMART#

09215311454

' ~ The HOTLINE service is open 2477 for text
messages and 8:00 am to 5:00 pm for calis.

. SEDP Simbag sa Pag-Asenso Inc. {A Mcofinance NGO)
The Chancery, Cathadral Compound

" Albay District Legazpi City 4500 Philippines

www.sedp.ph
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